
TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN  

REGULAR MEETING 
Monday, February 8, 2021 

7:00 p.m. 

Call to Order   Mayor Feather 

Determination of Quorum / Announcing Remote Participants if Necessary 

Moment of Silence 

Pledge of Allegiance  

1. Approval of Agenda

2. Approval of Consent Agenda
A. Approval of the Minutes

1) Regular Meeting Minutes January 11, 2021
B. Departmental Reports (Reports in Board packet)
C. Financial Reports (Reports in Board packet)

3. Citizen Comments
(All comments are limited to 6 minutes. No sharing of minutes with other citizens.)

4. Guests and Presentations
A. Space Needs Assessment Presentation Danny Ray Norman, Jr., AIA  

5. Town Manager Update (Report in Board packet)

Old Business None 

New Business 

6. Agreement     Southern Software
Annual Support Agreement for existing software.

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to approve Southern Software Annual Support Agreement for 2021-
2022 (September 14, 2021 – September 13, 2022) in the amount of $3,011.00

Town of Granite Quarry Page 1



7. LI Rezoning Update
Planner Blount will share an update on the LI Rezoning process and make the Board aware of items
approved by the Planning Board that will be brought before them at the regular meeting in March.

8. Planning Board Appointment Recommendation
The Planning Board reviewed an application for their vacant town resident seat and made the
recommendation that the Board of Aldermen appoint Mike Brinkley to the vacant seat with an
expiration of 7/31/2023.

ACTION REQUESTED: Consideration of the Planning Board’s recommendation and possible action
to appoint Mike Brinkley to the vacant Town resident Planning Board seat with an expiration of
7/31/2023.

9. Community Appearance Commission Appointment Recommendation
The Community Appearance Commission reviewed an application for their vacant town resident seat
and made the recommendation that the Board of Aldermen appoint Semone Brisson to the vacant ETJ
seat with an expiration of 7/31/2021.

ACTION REQUESTED: Consideration of the Community Appearance Commission’s
recommendation and possible action to appoint Semone Brisson to the vacant Community Appearance
Commission ETJ seat, expiring 7/31/2021.

10. NCDOT Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning Grant

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to authorize the Town Manager to proceed with the NCDOT Bicycle
and Planning Grant award.

11. Clyde Adams Memorial Plaque Options

ACTION REQUESTED: Direction from the Board on how it wishes to proceed.

12. Additional Street Light Proposal  Chief Hord

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to approve street lighting requests as presented.

13. Annexation    Municipal-Owned Satellite Properties

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to adopt Resolution 2021-01, stating the intent of the Town to annex
Town-owned satellite property and setting the date for public hearing on the matter for April 12, 2021.

14. Annexation    Petition for Voluntary Satellite Annexation

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to adopt Resolution 2021-02, directing the Clerk to investigate a
petition received under North Carolina General Statutes 160A-58.1.

15. Offer to Purchase Town-Owned Property 352 061

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to decline the Offer to Purchase parcel 352 061.

16. Board Comments

Town of Granite Quarry Page 2



17. Mayor’s Notes Announcements and Date Reminders 
A. Wednesday, February 10 5:00 p.m. Centralina Board of Delegates (virtual) 
B. Thursday, February 11 6:00 p.m. Community Appearance Commission 
C. Friday, February 12 BoA Planning Retreat 
D. Monday, February 15 5:00 p.m. Parks, Events, and Recreation Committee 
E. Monday, February 15 5:30 p.m. Zoning Board of Adjustment  
F. Tuesday, February 16 3:30 p.m. Revitalization Team 
G. Thursday, February 18 7:30 a.m. Rowan Chamber Power in Partnership Webinar 
H. Wednesday, February 24 5:30 p.m. Cabarrus-Rowan County MPO TAC 
I. Monday, March 1 6:00 p.m. Planning Board  
J. Monday, March 8 5:00 p.m. Rowan Chamber Business After Hours 

18. Closed Session Personnel Performance
ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to go into closed session pursuant to N.C. General Statutes Section
143-318.11(a)(6) To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, condition of appointment
of a public officer or employee or prospective public officer or employee.

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to return to open session. 

Adjourn 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 3



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
February 8, 2021 
Agenda Item 1          Approval of Agenda 

Summary: 
The Board may discuss, add, or delete items from the Regular 
Meeting agenda. 

Action Requested: 
Motion to adopt the February 8, 2021 Board of Aldermen 
Meeting Agenda (as presented / as amended). 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For          
Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 4



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
February 8, 2021 
Agenda Item 2   Approval of Consent Agenda 

Summary: 
The Board may discuss, add, or delete items from the Consent 
Agenda. 

A. Approval of the Minutes
1) Regular Meeting Minutes January 11, 2021

B. Departmental Reports
C. Financial Reports

Action Requested: 
Motion to approve the consent agenda (as presented / as 
amended).  

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For        
Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 5



TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, January 11, 2021 

7:00 p.m. 

Present:  Mayor Bill Feather, Mayor Pro Tem John Linker, Alderman Kim Cress, Alderman Doug Shelton 
(via video conferencing) 

Not Present: Alderman Jim Costantino 

Staff: Town Manager Larry Smith, Town Clerk Aubrey Smith, Town Attorney Chip Short (via video 
conferencing), Fire Chief/ Maintenance Supervisor Jason Hord, Police Chief Mark Cook, Finance Officer 
Shelly Shockley, Town Planner Steve Blount 

Call to Order:  Mayor Feather called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Determination of Quorum / Announcing Remote Participants: Mayor Feather determined there was a 
quorum present after Alderman Shelton announced his participation via the video conferencing platform. 
Mayor Feather updated the Board on Alderman Costantino’s health condition. He and his wife are both still 
in the hospital. 

Moment of Silence:  Mayor Feather led a moment of silence.   

Pledge of Allegiance:  The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Feather. 

1. Approval of the Agenda
There was discussion regarding a request that had been submitted by Alderman Shelton to add NCLM
Advocacy Goals as an action item.

ACTION:  Alderman Cress made a motion to approve the agenda with the addition of NCLM
Advocacy Goals as item 12A. Mayor Pro Tem Linker seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-0.

2. Approval of the Consent Agenda
A. Approval of the Minutes

1) Regular Meeting Minutes December 7, 2020
B. Departmental Reports
C. Financial Reports

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented. 
Alderman Cress seconded the motion.  The motion passed 3-0. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 6



3. Citizen Comments
• Brittany Barnhardt, 306 Meadow Wood Court – spoke in support of the Parks Master Plan.

4. Guests and Presentations
A. ISO Update   Insurance Commissioner Mike Causey
North Carolina Commissioner of Insurance and State Fire Marshal Mike Causey spoke about the
improvements and upgrades the town has made over the years. He recognized the Chief, the Fire
Marshal, Emergency Management, and the fire department personnel for their contributions.
Commissioner Causey presented Chief Hord and the Granite Quarry Fire Department with the ISO
Class 1 rating. The ISO 1 is the highest rating a fire department can earn. Granite Quarry joins the
ranks of only 16 other fire departments in the state with the ISO 1 rating. Granite Quarry is the
smallest town in the state with this class designation. Commissioner Causey spoke about the work
and cooperation that went into earning the achievement and stated that it may reduce insurance
rates for residential and commercial customers in the area.

Chief Hord thanked his family, the Board, the previous Town Manager Phil Conrad, the current 
Town Manager Larry Smith, Rowan Emergency Services Chief Allen Cress, Rowan County Fire 
Marshal Deborah Horne, 911 Chief Lonnie Owens, Mike West and Salisbury Rowan Utilities, all 
39 members of his team, and all the chiefs who served before him. 

Chief State Fire Marshal Brian Taylor recognized the part the water department, Emergency 
Management, and Fire Marshal’s office had in helping Granite Quarry Fire Department achieve the 
rating. 

5. Town Manager’s Update
Manager Smith presented Chief Hord with an award for his enthusiasm and leadership in bringing the
department to a level of excellence that led to the new ISO 1 rating.

Manager Smith referenced his report in the agenda packet and asked whether the Board wanted to
review the goals spreadsheet and possibly make amendments prior to the planning retreat. The Board
consensus was to wait until the retreat to have the discussion. Retreat questionnaires will be sent out to
the Board this week and will need to be returned to the clerk by 1/25/2021.

Old Business 

6. Comprehensive Parks and Recreation Master Plan
The Board again discussed the necessity, timing, and amount of funding required for a Parks and
Recreation Master Plan. Manager Smith reiterated that the plan would be an investment that would
allow the Town to be competitive for grants. Once in place, the plan would need to be updated every
five to ten years.

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to authorize the Town Manager to proceed with
commissioning a Comprehensive Parks and Recreation Master Plan for the Town if it can be
accomplished within an amount not to exceed $30,000. Alderman Cress seconded the motion. The
motion passed 3-0.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 7



New Business 

7. GQ Emergency Paid Sick Leave Policy
The Board discussed the proposed Granite Quarry Emergency Paid Sick Leave (GQEPSL) policy. The
Board asked questions including whether an employee could be asked to use accrued leave before being
granted GQEPSL. It was clarified that only full-time employees accrue leave; part-time employees
would not have accrued leave to use. The policy would cover all employees in an effort to keep
everyone safe and healthy.

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to approve the Granite Quarry Emergency Paid Sick
Leave policy as presented. Alderman Cress seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-0.

8. Granite Fest Performer’s Contract  Darrell Harwood
The Board discussed the Parks, Events, and Recreation Committee’s plan to have Darrell Harwood
perform at the 2021 Granite Fest in October and referenced the contract that was included in the agenda
packet. The PERC budget would cover the cost. The deposit would be paid this fiscal year and the
balance would be paid next fiscal year.

There was Board consensus to move forward with the contract.

9. Budget Amendment #9   Eagle Scout Project
To reimburse Christian Stebe for expenses related to an Eagle Scout project approved at the October 5,
2020 Board of Aldermen meeting.

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to approve Budget Amendment #9 as presented.
Alderman Cress seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-0.

10. Budget Amendment #10   Fire Department Donations
To transfer two (2) donations made to the Fire Department to Fire – Supplies & Equipment for the
purchase of two (2) Phillips Automated External Defibrillators.

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to approve Budget Amendment #10 as presented.
Alderman Cress seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-0.

11. Proclamations    Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
Black History Month

Mayor Feather stated that the Town had proclamations for Martin Luther King, Jr. Day and Black
History Month.

12. Board Comments
• Alderman Cress commented on the Fire Department’s achievement and stated there was a lot to be

proud of.

12.A. NCLM Advocacy Goals
The Board discussed the email from the NCLM requesting that each municipality designate a voter and
vote on which 10 of the 17 presented advocacy goals were most important to the Board.

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion that the designated voter be Clerk Smith. Alderman
Cress seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-0.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 8



It was requested that the Board members give Clerk Smith their top ten goals by Wednesday, January 
13th. 

13. Mayor’s Notes Announcements and Date Reminders 
A. Wednesday, January 13 5:00 p.m. Centralina Executive Board (virtual) 
B. Thursday, January 14 6:00 p.m. Community Appearance Commission 
C. Monday, January 18 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day - Office Closed 
D. Tuesday, January 19 3:30 p.m. Revitalization Team 
E. Tuesday, January 19 5:00 p.m. Parks, Events, and Recreation Committee 
F. Tuesday, January 19 5:30 p.m. Zoning Board of Adjustment  
G. Thursday, January 21 7:30 a.m. Rowan Chamber Power in Partnership Webinar 
H. Wednesday, January 27 5:30 p.m. Cabarrus-Rowan County MPO TAC 
I. Monday, February 1 6:00 p.m. Planning Board  
J. Monday, February 8 5:00 p.m. Rowan Chamber Business After Hours 

The Mayor made the Board aware that his schedule would be quite hectic over the next month. 

Adjourn 

ACTION: Alderman Cress made a motion to adjourn. Mayor Pro Tem Linker seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed 3-0. The meeting ended at 8:19 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Aubrey Smith 
Town Clerk 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 9



Planning Department Monthly Report 
January 2021 

ZONING PERMITS 
7 issued 
 

Date Address Permit Purpose 

1/4/2021 Chamandy Rd Commercial zoning permit- interior upfit 
1/6/2021 510 N Main St Residential zoning permit-garage 
1/8/2021 923 N Salisbury Ave Commercial temp sign permit during renov of main 

sign 
1/13/2021 224 S Cleo Ave Residential zoning permit single-family home 
1/27/2021 175 Twin Oaks Rd Residential recombination plat 
1/28/2021 ??? Pop Eller Dr Residential zoning permit single-family home 
1/28/2021 209 Joe Lewis St Residential zoning permit single-family home 

Code Violations  
(5 new violations cited, 2 resolved) 
 

Date Address Issue Status 
1/11/2021 810 N Salisbury Ave RV being used for housing Pending 
1/15/2021 505 S Main St appliance at curb Pending 
1/22/2021 717 S Main St junk on site, tanks with water Pending 
1/25/2021 726 S Main St person living in car Pending 
1/28/2021 128 N Oak St couch at curb Pending 

Planning and Zoning Enquiries  
 

Date Location Issue 
12/29/2020 Various Worked with property owners on downtown LI rezoning 
1/6/2021 Various Responded to several flooding issues related to heavy rain event 
1/7/2021 All Notified of NCDOT planning grant award 
1/11/2021 S Salisbury Ave Enquiry about food truck regulations 
1/11/2021 350 Cantiberry Water/sewer availability enquiry 
1/11/2021 N Salisbury Ave Town responsibility for unnamed road row 
1/13/2021 All Assembled information for annexation vs utilities policy 
1/19/2021 Loganberry Lane Land use enquiry 
1/19/2021 Twin Oaks Rd Lot dimension enquiry for recombination plat 
1/21/2021 S Main St Privacy fence enquiry 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 10



1/22/2021 Pop Eller Dr Rowan County preliminary name of road off Coley Rd 
1/25/2021 All Enquiry about electronic gaming legality in GQ 
1/25/2021 HWY 52 Dollar General property owner agrees to annexation 
1/28/2021 S Salisbury Ave Signed ABC License permit application 

Miscellaneous 
• 1/4/2021 Planning Board meeting.
• 1/18/2021 ZBA Meeting – Meeting cancelled for lack of business

Town of Granite Quarry Page 11



January Work 2021 Public Works Report 

• Normal Maintenance Duties Daily - (parks, cleaning, mowing, edging, service
on equipment, limbs & sweeping)

• PM check on generator
• Leaf pick up every other week
• FEMA project for Lake in final approved awaiting RFP from AWCK
• Fence installed at Lake park – Statesville Fence
• Sanitized town hall, playgrounds at parks, and restrooms
• Raked and collected leaves at both parks
• Kerns St. “dip or sinking curb” fixed – Mid-Carolina
• F350 tailgate repaired, small dent - Crossroads Body
• Continued street sign installations
• Trail maintenance
• Bryd property maintenance – leaves in gutters, etc.
• Street sweeping – Byrd, Oak, Walnut, Bank, Lyerly

2007 Ford Truck  Mileage – 59,746 +385 miles
1995 Ford Dump Truck Mileage – 39,160 +120 miles
2009 Ford Truck  Mileage – 76,726 +715 miles
2019 Ford Truck F350  Mileage – 7,825       +519 miles

Town of Granite Quarry Page 12

http://www.granitequarrync.gov/


Town of Granite Quarry 
Fire Department 

Established May 15th, 1950 
       PO Box 351  

 www.granitequarrync.gov     Granite Quarry, NC        704/279-5596 

Board Report February/2021 Chief Hord 

Emergency Calls for Service January 2021 
22 calls in district

• 18 – EMS (including strokes, falls, diabetic, CPR and other Medical needs)
• 2 – Alarm/Structure Call – Fire Out Upon Arrival
• 1 – Small Outside Fire – Extinguished
• 1 – Move up

16 calls to Rockwell Rural 
• 9 – Alarm/Structure Call – Cancelled en route

o 5 – Manpower on Working Incidents
o 1 – Staged Then Released
o 1 – Cancelled en route

• 2 – EMS
o 1 – Manpower
o 1 – Cancelled en route

• 2 – Brush Fires/Small Outside Fires
o 1 – Investigation
o 1 – Cancelled en route

• 2 – Service Call (non-emergency assistance)
• 1 – MVA – Manpower

10 calls to Salisbury 
• 4 – EMS

o 1 – Manpower
o 2 – Cancelled Upon Arrival
o 1 – Cancelled en route

• 4 – Alarm/Structure Calls
o 2 – Staged Then Released
o 1 – Manpower on Working Incident
o 1 – Cancelled en route

• 2 – Fire Alarms – Cancelled en route
5 calls to Union 

• 3 – EMS
o 2 – Manpower
o 1 – Staged Then Released

Town of Granite Quarry Page 13



• 1 – Alarm/Structure call – Manpower on Working Incident
• 1 – Fire Alarm – Cancelled en route

3 Calls to Rockwell City 
• 3 – Fire Alarm - Cancelled en route

2 Calls to Spencer 
• 2 – Alarm/Structure Calls

o Manpower on Working Incident
o Cancelled en route

TOTAL – 56 

ACTIVITIES 
• Daily activities include apparatus & equipment checks, training, station maintenance,

pre-plan development, hose and hydrant maintenance, water points, emergency response,
public education, inspections, and the assistance of other divisions within the Town of
GQ.

• Weekly Monday night training.
• Our monthly training included E.M.T. continuing education.
• Various training exercises throughout the week for on shift training with part time staff.
• Car Seat Check Station on Thursday from 1 p.m.to 4 p.m.
• Site Reviews and Business info updates with part-time and fulltime personnel.
• Received ISO Class 1.
• Took Unit 579 out of service. (Ford Explorer)
• Placed Squad 57 in service. (Ford F-250)

Town of Granite Quarry Page 14



Granite Quarry-Faith Joint Police Authority 
P.O. Box 351  143 North Salisbury Ave, Granite Quarry, NC 28072 

Office: (704)279-2952  Fax: (704)279-6648 

Police Department Report 

February 2021 

• Call volume report for the month of January 2021:

o Date of Report: 02/01/2021

o Total calls for service/activities – 263

o Calls for service/activities Granite Quarry: 218

o Calls for service/activities Faith: 58

o Incident Reports- 17 

o Arrest Reports- 6        

o Crash Reports- 4 

o Traffic Citations- 10 

• See Attached for Total Calls for Service.

• The following is the ending and average mileage for each vehicle by month:

221 Chevy Impala- End- 62,931  
224 Ford Taurus- End- 75,942  
225 Ford Utility- End- 60,840 
226 Ford Utility - End- 41,328  
227 Ford Utility - End- 64,870 
228 Ford Utility - End- 31,980  
229 Ford F150 - End- 50,832  
230 Dodge Durango - End- 26,183 
231 Ford Utility-  End- 6,272 

• Other Information:

o Average response time for January 2021 CFS is 2.63 minutes.

o Drug Collection Box. January 2021: 3.59 pounds collected.

o January CID Report. 8 Cases assigned; 4 Cases cleared; 18 follow-ups conducted; 93

open assigned cases.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 15



GQPD
Events by Nature Code by Agency

Agency: GQPD, Event date/Time range: 01/01/2021 00:00:00 - 01/31/2021 23:59:59

Agency
Code

Nature
Code

Rpt 
Only

Self
Init CFS Total % Total

Avg
Disp
Time

Avg
Resp
Time

Avg
Scene
Time

Total
Call
Time

Avg
Call
Time

GQPD 103A1 ROUTINE DELIVER 
MESSAGE 0 0 1 1 0% 0:04:35 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:19:23 0:19:23

103A2  FOUND PROPERTY 0 1 0 1 0% 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:12:29 0:12:29 0:12:29

104C1 BANK ALARM (INTRUSION) 0 0 1 1 0% 0:02:20 0:05:22 0:00:52 0:08:34 0:08:34

104C2 COMMERCIAL BURG 
(INTRUSI 0 0 5 5 2% 0:02:31 0:03:02 0:02:48 0:41:46 0:08:21

104C3 RESIDENTAL BURG 
(INTRUSI 0 0 2 2 1% 0:02:09 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:09:04 0:04:32

104D2 COMMERCIAL HOLD UP 
ALARM 0 0 1 1 0% 0:03:25 0:02:31 0:08:20 0:14:16 0:14:16

106C5 ASSAULT JUST OCC 0 0 1 1 0% 0:05:42 0:01:56 1:58:54 2:06:32 2:06:32

107B1 ASST OTHER AGENCY-
ROUTIN 0 1 0 1 0% 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:01:22 0:01:22 0:01:22

108O1 BOMB / PACKAGE-
REFERAL 0 0 1 1 0% 0:01:12 0:05:17 0:53:58 1:00:27 1:00:27

110C4 RES BURGLARY JUST 
OCC 0 0 1 1 0% 0:02:12 0:10:29 0:18:08 0:30:49 0:30:49

110D1 HOME INVASION 0 0 1 1 0% 0:03:54 0:02:54 0:34:05 0:40:53 0:40:53

111D1 DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 0 1 0 1 0% 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:20:39 0:20:39 0:20:39

112D2 DECEASED (SUDDEN) 0 0 1 1 0% 0:20:39 0:07:33 1:41:48 2:10:00 2:10:00

112O1 DECEASED PERSON 0 0 1 1 0% 0:03:57 0:03:59 1:20:18 1:28:14 1:28:14

113D1 DISTURBANCE / PHYSICAL 0 0 1 1 0% 0:19:02 0:03:22 0:14:59 0:37:23 0:37:23

113D2 DISTURBANCE / VERBAL 0 0 1 1 0% 0:02:08 0:11:51 0:04:14 0:18:13 0:18:13

114C1 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 0 0 1 1 0% 0:05:29 0:06:14 0:17:00 0:28:43 0:28:43

114D1 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 0 0 3 3 1% 0:01:51 0:04:24 0:50:38 2:50:40 0:56:53

114D2 VERBAL DOMESTIC 0 0 1 1 0% 0:02:27 0:12:32 0:16:17 0:31:16 0:31:16

114O2 DOMESTIC - 
INFORMATION 0 1 0 1 0% 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:08:09 0:08:09 0:08:09

116D2 DRUGS (SALE) 0 0 1 1 0% 0:03:08 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:22:28 0:22:28

Town of Granite Quarry Page 16



Agency
Code

Nature
Code

Rpt 
Only

Self
Init CFS Total % Total

Avg
Disp
Time

Avg
Resp
Time

Avg
Scene
Time

Total
Call
Time

Avg
Call
Time

116O2 DRUGS - INFORMATION 0 1 0 1 0% 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:11:30 0:11:30 0:11:30

118B2 FRAUD-PAST FORGERY 0 0 1 1 0% 0:02:16 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:19:06 0:19:06

118D1 FRAUD-CRIMINAL 
DECPTION 0 1 0 1 0% 0:00:01 0:00:00 0:52:57 0:52:58 0:52:58

118D2 FRAUD-FORGERY 0 1 0 1 0% 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:59:08 0:59:08 0:59:08

121D1 MENTAL - VIOLENT 0 0 1 1 0% 0:07:37 0:04:59 0:44:08 0:56:44 0:56:44

125B1 CHECK WELFARE - 
ROUTINE 0 0 1 1 0% 0:05:22 0:03:08 0:02:09 0:10:39 0:10:39

125B2 LOCKOUT - ROUTINE 0 1 3 4 2% 0:01:22 0:03:55 0:09:04 0:48:15 0:12:04

125D1 CHECK WELFARE-
URGENT 0 0 3 3 1% 0:03:52 0:06:56 0:28:26 1:57:42 0:39:14

126D2 BUSINESS ROBBERY IN 
PROG 0 0 1 1 0% 0:01:16 0:00:00 2:30:21 2:31:37 2:31:37

129C1 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 0 2 1 3 1% 0:02:37 0:04:20 0:56:45 2:57:14 0:59:05

129C3 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 0 4 4 8 3% 0:04:44 0:05:21 0:26:36 3:49:17 0:28:40

129C5 SUSPICIOUS 
CIRCUMSTANCE 0 0 2 2 1% 0:03:59 0:02:41 0:07:25 0:28:09 0:14:05

130B1 LARCENY (ALREADY OCC) 0 1 2 3 1% 0:05:18 2:15:35 0:18:04 3:24:31 1:08:10

130B2 VEHICLE LARCENY (PAST) 0 1 0 1 0% 0:00:00 0:00:00 1:05:08 1:05:08 1:05:08

130B3 THEFT FROM VEH (PAST) 0 0 1 1 0% 0:05:21 0:28:46 0:04:50 0:38:57 0:38:57

130B5 ATTEMPT VEH THEFT 
(PAST) 0 1 0 1 0% 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:46:59 0:46:59 0:46:59

130C1 THEFT JUST OCCURED 0 0 2 2 1% 0:02:38 0:03:41 0:35:28 1:23:33 0:41:47

131B1 TRAFFIC ACCIDENT - PD 0 0 2 2 1% 0:01:25 0:05:06 2:52:23 5:57:48 2:58:54

132B1 MINOR TRAFFIC 
VIOLATION 0 0 1 1 0% 0:09:56 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:10:05 0:10:05

132C1 SEVERE TRAFFIC 
VIOLATION 0 0 1 1 0% 0:10:43 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:12:33 0:12:33

132C2 HAZARDOUS ROAD 
CONDITION 0 1 0 1 0% 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:00:40 0:00:40 0:00:40

132C3 HAZARDOUS VEHICLE 0 0 1 1 0% 0:04:15 0:05:40 0:02:11 0:12:06 0:12:06

132D1 ROAD RAGE 0 0 1 1 0% 0:03:22 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:07:44 0:07:44

133D1 TRESPASSING 0 1 1 2 1% 0:04:31 0:07:05 0:31:08 1:13:52 0:36:56

Town of Granite Quarry Page 17



Agency
Code

Nature
Code

Rpt 
Only

Self
Init CFS Total % Total

Avg
Disp
Time

Avg
Resp
Time

Avg
Scene
Time

Total
Call
Time

Avg
Call
Time

9E1 CARDIAC OR RESP ARREST 0 0 1 1 0% 0:00:11 0:00:00 2:20:41 2:20:52 2:20:52

ATTEMPT TO LOCATE 0 0 1 1 0% 0:08:18 0:06:08 0:15:55 0:30:21 0:30:21

BURGLARY ALARM 0 0 4 4 2% 0:02:51 0:04:50 0:05:54 0:54:21 0:13:35

BUSINESS OR HOUSE CHECK 0 82 0 82 31% 0:00:01 0:02:03 0:06:06 8:22:35 0:06:08

COMMUNITY PROGRAM 0 1 0 1 0% 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:32:38 0:32:38 0:32:38

DELIVER MESSAGE 0 0 5 5 2% 0:13:56 0:00:08 0:02:18 2:45:46 0:33:09

DOMESTIC PROPERTY PICKUP 0 0 2 2 1% 0:02:50 0:06:35 0:21:16 0:46:20 0:23:10

ESCORT FUNERAL OR OTHER 0 0 1 1 0% 1:33:41 0:00:00 0:00:00 1:41:57 1:41:57

FOLLOWUP 0 22 1 23 9% 0:00:33 0:11:49 1:03:34 24:36:04 1:04:11

GENERAL INFORMATION 0 4 0 4 2% 0:00:01 0:00:00 0:03:49 0:15:17 0:03:49

PARK CHECK 0 20 0 20 8% 0:00:01 0:00:00 0:02:09 0:43:17 0:02:10

SCHOOL SECURITY CHECK 0 3 0 3 1% 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:15:41 0:47:04 0:15:41

TRAFFIC CONTROL 0 3 0 3 1% 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:32:47 1:38:21 0:32:47

TRAFFIC STOP 0 32 0 32 12% 0:00:01 0:00:00 0:19:28 10:23:08 0:19:28

UNLOCK VEHICLE CHILD INSIDE 0 1 0 1 0% 0:00:00 0:00:00 0:03:36 0:03:36 0:03:36

VEHICLE ACCIDENT PROP 
DAMAGE 0 1 1 2 1% 0:04:42 0:03:18 2:02:21 4:12:42 2:06:21

WARRANT SERVICE 0 5 1 6 2% 0:00:49 0:03:16 0:40:20 4:14:20 0:42:23

Subtotals for No Summary Code 0 193 70 263 100% 0:06:01 0:09:37 0:35:32 111:26:14 0:40:16

Subtotals for GQPD 0 193 70 263 100% 0:06:01 0:09:37 0:35:32 111:26:14 0:40:16

Town of Granite Quarry Page 18



.

Budgeted YTD

Revenues: 2,989,534 1,766,239 59%

 Total Revenues: 2,989,534$   1,766,239$   59%

Expenses:

Governing Body 183,249 48,713 27%

Administration 614,825 336,390 55%

Maintenance 522,433 207,134 40%

Parks & Recreation 88,633 67,892 77%

Police Dept. 802,554 383,230 48%

Fire Department 520,372 359,817 69%

Sanitation 135,693 76,679 57%

Streets 121,775 53,583 44%
 Total Expenses 2,989,534$   1,533,438$   51%

87%

Finance Department

Please see the Budget Vs. Actual Report attached for specific line items

Department

As of January 31, 2021
Breakdown of Departments:

Expense to Revenue:

Town of Granite Quarry Page 19



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of January 31, 2021

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-3100-12 Taxes - Budget Year 932,604  690,012  (242,592)  74%
01-3100-17 Tax Penalties & Interest 2,000  528   (1,472)  26%
01-3101-12 Taxes - Prior Years 4,000  1,011  (2,989)  25%
01-3102-12 Vehicle Tax 100,000  57,790  (42,210)  58%
01-3230-31 Local Option Sales Tax 719,146  474,212  (244,934)  66%
01-3231-31 Solid Waste Disposal Tax 2,186  1,135  (1,051)  52%
01-3261-31 Cable Franchise Tax 5,800  - (5,800) 0%
01-3300-36 Grants 243,075  41,082  (201,993)  17%
01-3316-32 Powell Pave & Patch Funds 82,724  80,180  (2,544)  97%
01-3319-36 COVID-19 Relief Fund 90,641  90,641  - 100%
01-3322-31 Beer & Wine - State 13,430  - (13,430) 0%
01-3324-31 Utilities Franchise Tax 144,484  66,786  (77,698)  46%
01-3330-84 County First Responders 4,020  2,345  (1,675)  58%
01-3340-41 Permits 3,000  6,340  3,340  211%
01-3346-40 Abatements 200   183   (18) 91%
01-3413-89 Miscellaneous Revenue 12,175  11,884  (291) 98%
01-3431-41 Police Authority Revenue_Faith 136,000  68,000  (68,000)  50%
01-3431-45 Police Report Revenue 100   120   20  120%
01-3431-89 Police Miscellaneous 800   1,326  526   166%
01-3471-51 Solid Waste/Recycling Collection - Salisbury 138,500   74,026  (64,474)  53%
01-3491-41 Subdivision & Zoning Fees 2,500  550   (1,950)  22%
01-3713-33 Sal. Water/Sewer Reimbursement 50,000  - (50,000) 0%
01-3831-89 Interest on Investments * 10,000  9,466  (534) 95%
01-3833-89 Donations/Contributions 1,200  1,200  - 100%
01-3834-41 Park Shelter Rentals (Maint) 2,000  880   (1,120)  44%
01-3835-81 Surplus items Sold 3,500  5,094  1,594  146%
01-3836-82 Sale of Land 63,650  63,166  (484) 99%
01-3837-31 ABC Net Revenue-Co. 10,250  13,232  2,982  129%
01-3980-96 Transfers Other Funds 5,051  5,051  - 100%
01-3991-99 Fund Balance Appropriated 206,498  - (206,498) 0%

2,989,534 1,766,239 (1,223,295)  59%

Revenues:

*See last page for breakdown of account# 01-3831-89 Interest on Investments

Town of Granite Quarry Page 20



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of January 31, 2021

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4110-02 Mayor/Aldermen Salary 12,575  6,288  6,288  50%
01-4110-08 Board Expense 1,064  823   241   77%
01-4110-09 FICA Expense 962   481   481   50%
01-4110-14 Insurance - Workers Comp 60  38  22  64%
01-4110-18 Professional Services 16,586  11,000  5,586  66%
01-4110-26 Office Expense 400   20  380   5%
01-4110-29 COVID-19 Relief Funds 90,641  17,026  73,585  19%
01-4110-31 Training & Schools 100   - 100 0%
01-4110-40 Dues & Subscriptions 12,075  11,572  503 96%
01-4110-45 Insurance & Bonds 1,600  1,464  136 92%
01-4110-61 Grants - Nonprofit Grant Program 100   - 100 0%
01-4110-97 Board Contingency 47,086  - 47,086 0%

183,249  48,713  134,506  27%

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4120-00 Salaries - Regular 220,000  128,179  91,821  58%
01-4120-02 Salaries - Part-Time 35,000  22,355  12,645  64%
01-4120-07 401K Expense 11,000  6,380  4,620  58%
01-4120-09 FICA Expense 19,508  11,239  8,269  58%
01-4120-10 Retirement Expense 22,330  12,989  9,341  58%
01-4120-11 Group Insurance 31,795  15,051  16,744  47%
01-4120-13 Unemployment Expense 2,205  2,204  1  100%
01-4120-14 Insurance - Workers Comp 615   413   202   67%
01-4120-17 Insurance – HRA/Admin Cost 5,450  1,700  3,750  31%
01-4120-18 Professional Services 47,645  17,704  20,115  37%
01-4120-22 Banquet Expense 1,700  1,313  388   77%
01-4120-26 Office Expense 11,000  5,212  5,788  47%
01-4120-29 Supplies & Equipment 200   - 200 0%
01-4120-31 Training & Schools 7,000  1,865  5,135 27%
01-4120-32 Telephone/Communications 3,500  2,065  1,435 59%
01-4120-33 Utilities 4,500  2,286  2,214 51%
01-4120-34 Printing 5,000  2,870  2,130 57%
01-4120-35 Maint & Repair - Equipment 500   - 500 0%
01-4120-37 Advertising 3,500  542   2,958  15%
01-4120-40 Dues & Subscriptions 3,500  1,883  1,617  54%
01-4120-44 Contracted Services 13,750  8,543  5,174  62%
01-4120-45 Insurance & Bonds 4,100  3,831  269   93%
01-4120-61 Grants - Grant Related Expenditures 3,500  - 3,500 0%
01-4120-68 Tax Collection 18,000  - 18,000 0%
01-4120-71 Water Line - Principal 50,000  - 50,000 0%
01-4120-72 Water Line - Interest 4,210  2,449  1,761 58%
01-4120-96 Interfund Transfer 85,317  85,317  - 100%

614,825  336,390  268,576  55%

Governing Body:

Administration:

Town of Granite Quarry Page 21



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of January 31, 2021

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4190-00 Salaries - Regular 110,000 66,049  43,951 60%
01-4190-02 Salaries - Part-Time 35,500 23,150  12,350 65%
01-4190-07 401K Expense 5,500 3,358  2,142 61%
01-4190-09 FICA Expense 11,131 6,822  4,309 61%
01-4190-10 Retirement Expense 11,165 6,837  4,328 61%
01-4190-11 Group Insurance 22,000 11,496  10,504 52%
01-4190-14 Insurance - Workers Comp 7,500 5,076  2,424 68%
01-4190-20 Motor Fuel 7,000 3,614  3,386 52%
01-4190-21 Uniforms & Janitorial Supplies 4,500 570   3,930 13%
01-4190-24 Maint & Repair - Bldgs/Grounds 10,000 3,011  6,989 30%
01-4190-25 Maint & Repair - Vehicles 3,500 2,127  1,373 61%
01-4190-26 Office Expense 25 -  25 0%
01-4190-29 Supplies & Equipment 7,500 4,404  3,096 59%
01-4190-31 Training & Schools 250 34  216 14%
01-4190-32 Telephone/Communications 775 466   309 60%
01-4190-33 Utilities 3,100 1,660  1,440 54%
01-4190-34 Printing 50 10  40 20%
01-4190-35 Maint & Repairs - Equipment 8,500 3,362  5,138 40%
01-4190-40 Dues & Subscriptions 150 75  75
01-4190-44 Contracted Services 21,850 1,885  19,965 9%
01-4190-45 Insurance & Bonds 3,600 2,923  677 81%
01-4190-96 Interfund Transfer 248,837 60,205  188,632 24%

$522,433 $207,134 $315,299 40%

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-6130-21 Uniforms & Janitorial Supplies 2,000  - 2,000 0%
01-6130-24 Maint & Repair - Bldgs/Grounds 58,633  57,432  1,240 98%
01-6130-29 Supplies & Equipment 4,000  1,410  2,590 35%
01-6130-33 Utilities 16,000  7,253  8,747 45%
01-6130-44 Contracted Services 3,000  - 3,000 0%
01-6130-62 Committees - PERC 5,000  1,797  3,203 36%

88,633  67,892  20,780  77%

Parks & Rec:

Maintenance:

Town of Granite Quarry Page 22



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of January 31, 2021

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4310-00 Salaries - Regular 394,000  223,148  170,852  57%
01-4310-02 Salaries - Part-Time 15,000  12,866  2,134  86%
01-4310-07 401K Expense 19,700  10,812  8,888  55%
01-4310-09 FICA Expense 31,289  18,217  13,072  58%
01-4310-10 Retirement Expense 42,946  23,438  19,508  55%
01-4310-11 Group Insurance 75,981  35,626  40,355  47%
01-4310-13 Unemployment Expense 19  18  1  95%
01-4310-14 Insurance - Workers Comp 13,500  8,312  5,188  62%
01-4310-20 Motor Fuel 19,000  6,504  12,496  34%
01-4310-21 Uniforms & Janitorial Supplies 3,000  1,582  1,418  53%
01-4310-25 Maint & Repair - Vehicles 6,000  3,266  2,734  54%
01-4310-26 Office Expense 1,500  157   1,343  10%
01-4310-29 Supplies & Equipment 8,000  2,966  5,034  37%
01-4310-31 Training & Schools 3,000  1,059  1,941  35%
01-4310-32 Telephone/Communications 8,000  4,308  3,692  54%
01-4310-33 Utilities 3,000  824   2,176  27%
01-4310-34 Printing 1,000  269   731   27%
01-4310-35 Maint & Repair - Equipment 2,000  - 2,000 0%
01-4310-40 Dues & Subscriptions 3,650  1,776  1,874 49%
01-4310-44 Contracted Services 23,250  15,281  7,969 66%
01-4310-45 Insurance & Bonds 13,800  12,800  1,000 93%
01-4310-54 Cap Outlay - Vehicles * 114,919  - 21,581 0%

802,554  383,230  325,986  48%
* 2 Vehicles and Upfit are Encumbered

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4340-00 Salaries - Regular 113,900  71,789  42,111  63%
01-4340-02 Salaries - Part-Time 185,000  119,237  65,763  64%
01-4340-07 401K Expense 5,695  4,073  1,622  72%
01-4340-09 FICA Expense 22,866  14,181  8,685  62%
01-4340-10 Retirement Expense 11,561  8,292  3,269  72%
01-4340-11 Group Insurance 25,500  12,892  12,608  51%
01-4340-14 Insurance - Workers Comp 14,000  10,477  3,523  75%
01-4340-20 Motor Fuel 5,000  1,776  3,224  36%
01-4340-21 Uniforms & Janitorial Supplies 3,000  1,091  1,909  36%
01-4340-25 Maint & Repair - Vehicles 6,000  5,992  8  100%
01-4340-26 Office Expense 250   5  245   2%
01-4340-29 Supplies & Equipment 21,200  17,188  4,012  81%
01-4340-31 Training & Schools 2,000  160   1,840  8%
01-4340-32 Telephone/Communications 3,800  2,603  1,197  69%
01-4340-33 Utilities 5,700  3,059  2,641  54%
01-4340-34 Printing 400   193   207   48%
01-4340-35 Maint & Repair - Equipment 3,000  846   2,154  28%
01-4340-40 Dues & Subscriptions 3,000  1,790  1,210  60%
01-4340-44 Contracted Services 10,000  6,801  3,199  68%
01-4340-45 Insurance & Bonds 8,000  7,227  773   90%
01-4340-54 Cap Outlay - Vehicles 38,000  37,853  147   100%
01-4340-55 Cap Outlay - Equipment 32,500  32,292  208   99%

520,372  359,817  160,555  69%

Fire Department:

Police Department:

Town of Granite Quarry Page 23



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of January 31, 2021

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4710-64 Recycling 10,125  6,790  3,335  67%
01-4710-65 Garbage Services 125,568  69,889  55,679  56%

135,693  76,679  59,014  57%

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4510-18 Professional Services 750   750   - 100%
01-4510-29 Supplies & Equipment 250   120   130   48%
01-4510-35 Maint & Repair 6,500  6,500  - 100%
01-4510-71 Debt Service - Principal 50,000  25,000  25,000  50%
01-4510-72 Debt Services - Interest 10,233  5,320  4,913  52%
01-4510-99 Unappropriated Fund Balance 20,042  - 20,042 0%
01-4511-33 Utilities - Street Lights 34,000  15,893  18,107 47%

121,775  53,583  68,192  44%

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
Town Hall Upgrades Project 387,116  387,116  - 100%
FEMA Granite Lake Project 697,815  43,195  654,620  6%
Industrial Development Sewer Grant Project 323,892  60,205  263,687  19%
Streets Improvement Project 344,950  344,950  - 100%

1,753,773  835,466  918,307  48%

Sanitation:

Streets:

Capital / Grant Project Ordinances:

Town of Granite Quarry Page 24



Acct# July 20 Aug 20 Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov 20 Dec 20 Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr 21 May 21 Jun 21 Interest YTD Balance
Certificates of Deposits:
XX7779 417     431     431     417     431     417     431     -      -      -      -      -  2,975.29  250,000.00    
XX7809 355     367     367     355     367     355     368     -      -      -      -      -  2,534.06  250,000.95    
XX7151 355     367     367     355     367     355     367     -      -      -      -      -  2,530.95  250,284.54    
XX0261 287     296     296     Matured Matured Matured -      -      -      -      -      -  878.83     -  

1,414    1,461    1,461    1,127    1,165    1,127    1,166    -  -  -  -  -  8,919.13$     750,285.49$      

Money Market Accounts:
XX9011 61  54  55  98  93  100     71  -      -      -      -      -      531.97     589,991.66    
XX1186 8     7     8     8     7     8     6     -      -      -      -      -      53.57  62,555.07      

69    61    63    106  101  108  78    -  -  -  -  - 585.54 652,546.73   

NC Capital Management Trust:
XX4319 21  11  3     1     1     1     1     -      -      -      -      - 40.14$    150,956.15$       

21    11    3  1  1  1  1  -  -  -  -  - 40.14 150,956.15   

Total Interest YTD:

Total Invested Balance:

Cash on Hand *
*(As of Bank Statement on 1/31/2021)

1,553,788.37$   

9,544.81$       

529,817.13$      

Interest on Investments by Month
FY 2020-2021

Town of Granite Quarry Page 25



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
February 8, 2021 
Agenda Item 4A       Space Needs Assessment 

Summary: 
Architect Dan Norman will present his findings from the Space 
and Facilities Needs update to the Board.  His rendering of the 
ground floor and second floor plans is attached. 

Action Requested: 
No action required. 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For        
Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 26



Town of Granite Quarry Page 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL PD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUPERVISOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOBBY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PW OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOBBY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOR/ IT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATROL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERGEANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVESTIGATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOARD ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN MANAGER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONF.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH DENSITY SHELVING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"= 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAYOUT D

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOOL CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOOL BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOP ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPARATUS BAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULTI- PURPOSE/ FILES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHIEF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECTOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEP CHEIF

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXERCISE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
912 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAINING ROOM  SEATING 44 MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAPTAIN'S OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSIST. CHIEF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAY ROOM/ LIVING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUNKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUNKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAPTAIN'S BUNK

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIP STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHIEF'S OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS GENERAL STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY EXIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTDOOR BALCONY TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"= 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAYOUT D

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOR/ MEDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUNKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOMENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLERK

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECEPTION OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFERENCE FUTURE ADMIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAYOR'S OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHIEF'S BUNK



Town of Granite Quarry 

Town Manager’s Report 

February 2021 

1. Charter, Ordinances, Policy, Pay Classification studies.  We are close to wrapping up a LOT at once.
Most of it is structural, but the consultant on the personnel policy & pay classification and I have
been trying to expedite her work on the pay class side since that will have the biggest potential
strategic and budgetary considerations for the Board to discuss.  She thinks we’ll have that
completed and ready for presentation at the March meeting.

2. Planning Retreat.  There has been some feedback about postponing the upcoming planning retreat
since several may have to otherwise attend virtually if at all.  Given the above summary, that would
probably coincide well with getting more information on some of the existing goals beforehand.
We’ll welcome whatever guidance on rescheduling the Board may have for us at this meeting.

3. Fire Dept donations.  Chief Hord had to leave last month’s meeting early with the ISO wrap-up.  He
can update the Board this meeting about the donations and purchases approved last month.

4. Revenues.  Conservative forecasting for the budget still has us in good shape.
• State-shared distributions.  In November our actual vs budget projected us to end the FY at least

$58k to the good on state-shared revenues.  We just got our 2nd quarter distributions in (which
covered the most unpredictable forecasting period from the pandemic).  Projecting out, it
appears that we’ll indeed be closer to $70k better than budgeted.

• Ad valorem taxes are still currently projected to be closer to budgeted.  January is typically either
the 2nd or 3rd highest collection amount within the FY though and that data is not in yet.  So I’ll
have a more accurate picture of this revenue projection next month.

5. Comprehensive Parks and Recreation Master Plan.  We reworked some of the scopes for the project 
to get it down to our $30,000 maximum target.  At first I was surprised, but after looking back
through my files from a former post, I realized the last one I was involved with - in 2013 - was $35,000
and had roughly the same scope… so I feel we’ve ultimately gotten a good deal.  Scope of services is
attached for your review.

6. Town Hall Space Needs and Facilities Needs Update.  Completed last month.  Architect Dan Norman 
will present his findings at the meeting.  Total invoiced was $5,000.

7. Annexations / survey cleanup.  Special thanks to our attorney and surveyor for really buckling down
this past month to get some legal issues and surveyed encroachment questions sorted out so we
could finalize Mr. Marple’s parcel from the remainder tract and proceed with annexations process.

8. Updates and training.  A LOT of updates this past month about local government effects with the
change in state and federal administrations.  We’re also continuing to focus on staff training.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 28



9. Committee Reports.
A. Revitalization Team.

• Public Forum.  With pandemic status and restrictions as they are, the Team decided to hold
off on discussion of the forum until the Spring.  It could potentially end up coinciding with /
tying into the Comp Parks & Rec Master Plan community forums as well.

• US 52 sidewalks / streetscape.  Staff updated the Team about the number of Town goals that
are prioritized and underway all at once right now due to several previously-staggered
projects being delayed until now also.  Some of this goal will still tie into the Parks & Rec
planning process, and even more so the Bike & Ped planning grant we recently received, but
otherwise staff time & availability is very restricted right now.  The Team can still be looking
for opportunities that they might be able to tackle as a Team grassroots initiative (which is
ideal anyway) to continue pushing this particular goal forward.

• Other.  The Team also discussed partnership and Merchants’ Association opportunities.

B. Community Appearance Commission.
• Programs/events.  Continued hashing details for the Yard of the Month program set to begin

in April with selection of 2 yards/month April-Sept; a Halloween/Fall decoration contest in
October; and a Christmas/Holiday decoration contest in December.

• Budget.  Discussed budget request for the upcoming year.

• Membership candidate.  Met with ETJ membership candidate and recommended her for
appointment. 

C. Parks, Events, and Recreation Committee.
• Scouts Cleaning Park.  Discussed and recommended signage in the parks for the Scout Troops

that have been participating in parks cleanup.

• Arts in the Park.  Discussed inviting area students to display or perform various types of art in
the park May 1 from 1-5pm, contingent upon pandemic status and restrictions; also inviting
vendors with a $25 booth fee.

• Granite Fest ’21.  Discussed securing sponsors to offset financial costs of the event.

• Community Programs.  Discussed looking into programs and activities that can take place
within the community in order to keep residents from going out of town, such as reading or
yoga in the park, exercise boot camps, workshops, and senior programs (that would be
handled by outside organizations and not town staff or PERC.

• Membership attendance.  Discussed that Faye Harper has not been able to attend meetings
since January 2020, and members have reached out to her with no success.  PERC has had
one member more than allotted due to an appointment error, so her name will simply be
removed from the 7-member roster.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 29



benesch 

February 3, 2021 

Mr. Larry Smith 
Town Manager 
Town of Granite Quarry 
143 N. Salisbury Avenue 
Granite Quarry, NC 28146 

RE: Granite Quarry Parks & Recreation Master Plan (P2117175.00) 
Proposal for Professional Services 

Dear Mr. Smith: 

Alfred Benesch & Company 

2359 Perimeter Pointe Parkway. Suite 350 

Charlotte. NC 28208 
www.benesch.com 

P 704-521-9880 

f 704-521-8955 

It is our understanding that the Town of Granite Quarry (Client) desires to employ a consultant (Benesch) to 
develop a Parks & Recreation Master Plan to guide the Town in development of new parks and recreation 
opportunities as well as assess existing facilities. The project study area for this contract is defined as Town of 
Granite Quarry proper and any ETJ limits. The proposed scope for the Town's Parks & Recreation Master Plan is 
as follows: 

Task 1: project Kick-Off Meeting 
Benesch will begin the planning efforts with a kick-off meeting with the Client to discuss the scope of work, 
project program, project timeline, project deliverables, and future meetings. The Client will invite any required 
participants, and set the location, date, and time of meeting. Typically, we hold the kick-off meeting in 
conjunction with our park tour visit, but given the current times, this meeting can also be held separately as a 
video/conference call, if desired. 

Task 2: Data Collection/Assessment/Facilities Inventory 
Benesch will inventory and analyze existing recreation facilities and programs in relation to recreation trends 

and needs and current population with respect to Granite Quarry to prepare the Parks and Recreation Master 
Plan. Data collection will include: 

• Review of applicable planning documents
• Any existing park Master Planning documents
• Existing park and recreation facilities - assessment of facility type, use, quality, maintenance

concerns and site issues
• Recreation facilities offered by others such as county and state parks, school facilities,

churches, and the private sector.
• Identify and evaluate other Town owned property and facilities for potential recreational use.
• With our subconsultant, ETC Institute, design a community survey for Granite Quarry and mail out to

all households (estimated to be around 1,200) with a goal of receiving 150-200 completed surveys,
and prepare a summary report with the recreation needs assessment.

• Hold one (1) community engagement session to gather input from the residents of Granite
Quarry. This can be held as a drop-in session at an outdoor location such as the shelter at
Granite Lake Park.

• Identify areas with shortfalls in current recreational services.
• Population and demographics - current and projected
• Socio-economic trends
• Recreation trends and projections
• Existing and proposed development, including transportation projects.
• Cultural and historic resources

Town of Granite Quarry Page 30



Granite Quarry Parks & Recreation Master Plan 

Page /2 

• Staff and operations/maintenance issues
• Open space and natural resources
• Budgets
• Funding resources
• Possible partnerships and collaborations

benesch 

Base mapping to be provided by the Client or acquired by available GIS data. One site visit to conduct the park 

visits is included in this task, to be scheduled concurrently with the project kick-off meeting. 

Benesch will identify issues, goals and opportunities relating to recreation services and facilities. One meeting 

with the Board of Aldermen to discuss findings is included in this phase. Goals and opportunities will be 

prioritized to provide a framework for the Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 

Task 3: Develop Draft Recommendations/Preliminary Parks & Recreatjon Master Plan 
Benesch will prepare draft recommendations for the Granite Quarry Parks and Recreation Comprehensive 

Master Plan. Both short- and long-range goals will be identified, as well as probable costs. 

A preliminary Parks and Recreation Master Plan will be prepared with potential chapters to include: 

• Acknowledgements
• Executive Summary
• A Vision for Town of Granite Quarry Parks and Recreation
• Existing Conditions
• Inventory of Existing Parks and Recreation Facilities
• Community Participation
• Recreation Standards and Community Needs Assessment
• Comprehensive Parks Master Plan, Recommendations and General Cost Estimates
• Funding Opportunities & Creative Partnerships
• Action Steps

One PDF copy of the Draft recommendations and mapping will be provided to the Client for their review and 

comment. The Preliminary Parks and Recreation Master Plan will be presented to the Board of Aldermen for 

review and comment. 

Task 4: Final Parks and Recreatjon Master Piao 
Benesch will revise the preliminary plan based on comments from the Board of Aldermen and prepare the 

Final Granite Quarry Parks and Recreation Master Plan. The Client will present the Final Parks and 

Recreation Master Plan to the Board of Aldermen for approval and adoption. 

Task 4 Deliverables: {1) one bound copy of the Final Granite Quarry Parks and Recreation Master Plan, 

(1) one unbound copy, and (1) one PDF copy.

Additional Services beyond Landscape Architect's Basic Services may be provided if confirmed in 

writing. The following is a list of services that are NOT included in the Basic Services listed above: 
• Public participation processes and public meetings or any other meetings are not included other

than those listed above.
• Renderings, sketches, or models other than those listed above are not included in this proposal.
• Surveying services are not included with this proposal. Surveys, elevations, and locations of

underground or above ground utilities, facilities, plants and specimen trees, site amenities, fencing,

Town of Granite Quarry Page 31



Granite Quarry Parks & Recreation Master Plan 

Page /3 

easements are not included in this proposal. 

benesch 

• Environmental engineering - such as identification or mitigation or wetlands, streams,River

buffers, FEMA floodways, flood plain, etc.
• Maintenance plans or guidelines are not included in this proposal.
• Park assessments and recommendations for Life Safety is not included.
• No agency reviews or permitting are included.
• Reviews and revisions are included in the proposal as listed above. Additional reviews, revisions or

presentations would constitute Additional Services.
• PARTF Application assistance.
• Fast track scheduling that would require overtime pay for Benesch employees would require

additional compensation.
• Plans for construction or bidding or reproduction of bid sets. Construction administration services

and as-built drawings are not included.

• Administration of outside consultant's contracts for wetlands, environmental, surveying,

geotechnical services, or coordination of their work is not included in this proposal.
• Services not specifically listed in the above Scope of Services are not included.

COMPENSATION 

Based on the tasks described above the Benesch team estimates the fees for the scope elements as follows: 

Town of Granite Quarry Parks & Recreation Master Plan 

Granite Quarry Community Survey 

Proposed Schedule of Fees 

$25,000 

$ 5,000 

$30,000 

In addition, reimbursable expenses are costs incurred for mail, printing, travel, and postage. These expenses are 

incorporated within the fees above. 

We will bill on a time and expense or negotiated basis for work considered to be additional services. Those 
services would include work not specifically described in the scope above, changes or revisions when those are 
inconsistent with previous direction, modifications made necessary by field conditions undiscoverable to 
Benesch and generally for work or revisions made necessary by conditions that could not have been anticipated 
by Benesch or beyond their control. We will notify you in writing should any of these conditions occur prior to 
proceeding with the additional work. 

SCHEDULE 

Benesch will complete the Granite Quarry Parks & Recreation Master Plan within five (S) months from the date 

of issue for a Notice to Proceed from the Town. 

Mr. Smith, it is a pleasure to assist you and the town of Granite Quarry with your Parks & Recreation Master 

Planning needs. Please review this proposal. If you have any questions, feel free to call. If you find it to be 

acceptable, you may indicate your concurrence in the space provided below and return to our office. Once 

executed, we will begin work immediately. The attached standard General Conditions for Professional Services is 

incorporated into and made a part of this agreement. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 32



Granite Quarry Parks & Recreation Master Pion 

Page /4 

Respectfully submitted, 

Alfred Benesch & Company 

�AA,(_ 
Jonathan D. Wood, PLA 

Senior Project Manager 

benesch 

Brian Cannella, PLA 

NC Division Manager, VP 

AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED WITH THE SCOPE OF WORK INDICATED ABOVE. 

Town of Granite Quarry 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 33



benesch 
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

SECTION 1 - Services by Consultant 

1.1 General 
Consultant shall provide services under this Agreement 
only upon request of the Client, and only to the extent 
defined and required by the Client. These services may 
include the use of outside services, outside testing 
laboratories, and special equipment. 

Attachments to this Agreement are as identified on the 
signature page to this Agreement or using serially 
numbered Work Authorizations, and with these GENERAL 
CONDITIONS, are all as attached hereto, and made a part 
of this Agreement. 

1.2 Scope of Services and Fees 
The services to be performed by Consultant and the 
associated fee are attached hereto and made a part of this 
Agreement or by using serially numbered Work 
Authorizations, all as identified on the signature page to this 
Agreement, and shall be performed by the Consultant in 
accordance with the Client's requirements. The Scope of 
Services and Fee Estimate (Attachment A) is valid for sixty 
(60) days, after which Consultant reserves the right to
revise the Scope or Fee Estimate.

It is mutually understood that Consultant's fee is not a firm 
contractual amount, except the total fee by the Consultant 
shall not be exceeded unless authorized in writing by the 
Client. The intent of the Scope of Services is to identify the 
services to be provided by Consultant. However, it is 
specifically understood that by written notice to Consultant, 
Client can decrease or, with concurrence of Consultant, 
increase the Scope of Services. 

SECTION 2 - Payments to Consultant 

2.1 Method of Payment 
Payment for Consultant's personnel services and direct 
expenses shall be based on the Method of Payment which 
is identified on the signature page to this Agreement or 
serially numbered Work Authorizations, attached hereto, 
and made a part of this Agreement. 

2.2 Payment for Personnel Services 
� Payment 

Payment for the services rendered by Consultant's 
personnel shall be based on the hours of chargeable time 
and in accordance with Consultant's Schedule of Unit 
Rates, which is identified on the signature page to this 
Agreement and attached hereto, and made a part of this 
Agreement. 

2.2.2 Chargeable Time 
Chargeable time for Consultant's personnel is that portion 
of their time devoted to providing services requested by 
Client. Chargeable time for field personnel located away 
from Consultant's office for more than one week is a 
minimum of eight hours per day and five days per calendar 
week, except for Consultant observed legal holidays or 
during an employee's sick leave or vacation time. Travel 

Std Client Consulting Agnnnt 
November2019 

time from Consultant's office to an assigned work site, and 
return to Consultant's office, is chargeable time; or if more 
economical for Client, Consultant shall lodge its personnel 
overnight near the work site in lieu of traveling back to 
Consultant's office at the end of each work day. 

2.2.3 Overtime Rates 
The basis for payment to Consultant for each hour worked 
in excess of forty ( 40) hours in any calendar week shall be 
the applicable hourly rate as specified in the Schedule of 
Unit Rates. 

2.3 Payment for Direct Expenses 
2.3.1 Payment 

For Direct Expenses incurred by Consultant, payment to 
Consultant by the Client shall be in accordance with 
Consultant's Schedule of Unit Rates. 

2.3.2 Direct Expenses 
For the purposes of this Agreement, Direct Expenses to be 
contracted and managed by Consultant and payable by 
Client to Consultant shall include: Outside Services 
including the services and reimbursable expenses for firms 
other than Consultant which are necessary for the work the 
Consultant is directed to perform; Laboratory Tests and 
related reports necessary for the work the Consultant is 
directed to perform, either by the Consultant or by an 
outside service for the Consultant; Special Equipment 
expenses including the costs of the Consultant locating, 
acquiring, leasing, or renting any equipment or facilities not 
currently owned, leased, or rented by Consultant at the time 
of the request for services which are necessary to enable 
Consultant to provide the services requested; vehicles 
furnished by Consultant for Consultant's authorized travels 
and for Consultant's field personnel; Per Diem expense or 
actual costs of maintaining Consultant's field personnel on 
or near the Project site, for each day of field assignment 
away from Consultant's office; and Other Direct Expenses 
associated with all services provided hereunder and 
identified in the Schedule of Unit Rates. 

2.4 Payment Conditions 
2.4.1 Consultant shall submit monthly invoices for 

all personnel services and direct expenses under this 
Agreement and a final invoice upon completion of services. 

2.4.2 Invoices are due and payable upon receipt 
by Client. Interest at a rate of 1.5% per month, or the 
maximum allowed by law, will be charged on all past due 
amounts starting thirty (30) days after date of invoice. 
Payments will first be credited to interest and then to 
principal. 

2.4.3 In the event of a disputed or contested 
invoice, Client must provide written notice to Consultant 
within ten (10) days of the date of any invoice, otherwise the 
invoice will be considered to be correct. In the event Client 
timely submits in writing a dispute on a particular invoice, 
only that portion so contested will be withheld from payment 
and the Client will pay the undisputed portion. No interest 
will accrue on any reasonably contested portion of the 
invoice until mutually resolved. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 34



� If Client fails to make payment in full to 
Consultant of amounts owed pursuant to this Section 2 
within forty-five (45) days of the date of the invoice, 
Consultant may, after giving seven (7) days' written notice 
to Client, suspend services under this Agreement until paid 
in full, including interest. Consultant shall have no liability 
to Client for delays or damages caused by such suspension 
of services. Client agrees to pay all costs of collection, 
including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred by 
Consultant as a result of Client's failure to make payments 
in accordance with this Agreement. No final plans, 
documents or reports will be released for any purpose until 
Consultant has been paid in full. 

2.4.5 The billing rates specified in the Schedule of 
Unit Rates for subsequent years shall be adjusted annually 
in accordance with Consultant's costs of doing business, 
subject to Client's review and concurrence. 

SECTION 3 - Term of Agreement 

3.1 Term 
Consultant's obligations to perform under this Agreement 
shall extend from the date of execution until terminated by 
either party. 

3.2 Abandonment of Work 
Client shall have the absolute right to abandon any work 
requested hereunder or to change the general scope of the 
work at any time, and such action on its part shall in no 
event be deemed a breach of contract. 

3.3 Termination of Agreement 
3.3.1 Termination with Cause 

The obligation to provide further services under this 
Agreement may be terminated with cause by either party by 
written notice stating the basis for the termination and 
providing 7 days to cure. The termination will be effective 
seven (7) days after delivery of written notice thereof if the 
basis for the termination has not been cured. In the event 
of termination by Consultant caused by failure of the Client 
to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, 
Client shall pay for all services performed prior to the 
effective date of the termination, including all project 
termination expenses, collection fees and legal expenses. 
Consultant shall prepare a progress report, including 
information as to all the services performed by Consultant 
and the status of the services as of the date of the 
termination, and provide information and documents 
developed under the terms of this Agreement to the Client 
upon receipt of final payment. In the event of termination 
by the Client caused by failure by Consultant to perform in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement, Consultant 
shall prepare a progress report, including information as to 
all the services performed by Consultant and the status of 
the services as of the date of the termination and provide 
information and documents developed under the terms of 
this Agreement to the Client. Upon receipt of all other 
information and documents, Client shall pay Consultant for 
services performed prior to the effective date of the 
termination. 

3.3.2 Termination without Cause 
Either party may, at its sole discretion, terminate this 

Std Client Consulting Agnnnt 
November2019 

Agreement without cause at any time. In the event of such 
termination, the terminating party will promptly notify and 
confirm the termination in writing to the other party. The 
termination will be effective seven (7) days after delivery of 
written notice thereof. Upon termination, Consultant shall 
prepare a progress report, including information as to all the 
services performed by Consultant and the status of the 
services as of the date of the termination, and provide 
information and documents developed under the terms of 
this Agreement to the Client upon receipt of final payment. 
3.4 Payment for Work Upon Abandonment or 
Agreement Termination 
If Client abandons requested work or terminates this 
Agreement, Consultant shall be paid on the basis of work 
completed to the date of abandonment or effective date of 
termination. Consultant shall perform no activities other 
than reasonable wrap-up activities after receipt of notice of 
abandonment or termination. Payment for the work shall 
be as established under Section II. 

SECTION 4 - General Considerations 

4.1 Assignment and Responsibility for Personnel 
4.1.1 The assignment of personnel and all phases 

of the undertaking of the services which Consultant shall 
provide hereunder shall be subject to the oversight and 
general guidance of Client. 

4.1.2 While upon the premises of Client or property 
under its control, all employees, agents, and 
subconsultants of Consultant shall be subject to Client's 
rules and regulations respecting its property and the 
conduct of its employees thereon. 

4.1.3 However, it is understood and agreed that in 
the performance of the work and obligations hereunder, 
Consultant shall be and remain an independent Consultant 
and that the employees, agents or subconsultants of 
Consultant shall not be considered employees of or subject 
to the direction and control of Client. Consultant shall be 
responsible for the supervision and performance of all 
subconsultants which are to perform hereunder. 

4.2 Insurance 
4.2.1 Consultant shall furnish Client a certificate of 

insurance upon request showing amounts and types of 
insurance carried by Consultant, which certificate shall 
contain a commitment by the Insurance Company that 
during the time any work is being performed by Consultant 
under this Agreement it will give Client notice of cancellation 
or non-renewal of the insurance coverage shown on such 
certificates in accordance with policy provisions. 

4.2.2 Any construction contracts relative to 
Consultant's Services shall require that the Client and 
Consultant be included as additional insureds on the 
contractor's and contractor's subcontractors' commercial 
general liability and commercial automobile liability 
insurance policies and that the coverage afforded Client 
and Consultant is primary to any insurance maintained by 
Client or Consultant and that Client and Consultant's 
insurance is non-contributory with any coverage afforded by 
contractor and subcontractors. Client will also require 
contractor and all subcontractors to purchase and maintain 
workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 35



Consultant will name the Client as additional insured on 
Consultant's commercial general liability insurance. 

4.3 Successors and Assigns 
4.3.1 Client and Consultant each binds itself and 

its partners, successors, executors, administrators, 
assigns, and legal representatives to the other party to this 
Agreement and to the partners, successors, executors, 
administrators, assigns, and legal representatives of such 
other party, in respect to all covenants, agreements, and 
obligations of this Agreement. 

4.3.2 Neither Consultant nor Client shall assign or 
transfer any rights under or interest in (including, but without 
limitation, moneys that may become due or moneys that are 
due) this Agreement without the written consent of the other 
party, except as stated in paragraph 4.3.1 and except to the 
extent that the effect of this limitation may be restricted by 
law. Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written 
consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or 
discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under 
this Agreement. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall 
prevent Consultant from employing such independent 
consultants, associates, and subconsultants as it may 
deem appropriate to assist in the performance of services 
hereunder. 

� Nothing herein shall be construed to give any 
rights or benefits hereunder to any one other than Client 
and Consultant except as otherwise provided herein. 

4.4 Compliance with Law 
4.4.1 Consultant shall exercise the professional 

standard of care to comply with, and cause its 
subconsultants to comply with, applicable Federal, state, 
and local laws, orders, rules, and regulations in effect at the 
time services are rendered, and relating to the performance 
of the services Consultant is to perform under this 
Agreement. If the Scope of Services requires Consultant to 
prepare an application for a permit, Consultant does not 
represent or warrant that said permit or approval will be 
issued by any governmental body. 

4.4.2 Neither the Consultant nor the Consultant's 
agents or employees shall discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment to be employed in 
the performance of this Agreement with respect to hiring, 
tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, 
because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

4.5 Ownership and Reuse of Documents 
4.5.1 All drawings, specifications, test reports, and 

other materials and work products which have been 
prepared or furnished by Client prior to this Agreement shall 
remain Client's property. Consultant shall be permitted to 
rely on Client furnished documents and Client shall make 
available to Consultant copies of these materials as 
necessary for the Consultant to perform the services 
requested hereunder. 

4.5.2 All drawings, specifications, test reports, and 
other materials and work products, including computer 
aided drawings, designs, and other data filed on electronic 
media which will be prepared or furnished by Consultant 
(and Consultant's independent professional associates and 
subconsultants) under this Agreement, are instruments of 

Std Client Consulting Agnnnt 
November2019 

service in respect to the Project and Consultant shall retain 
an ownership and property interest therein whether or not 
the Project is completed. Client may make and retain 
copies for information and reference in connection with the 
use and the occupancy of the Project by Client and others; 
however, such documents are not intended or represented 
to be suitable for reuse by Client or others acting on behalf 
of Client on extensions of the Project or on any other 
project. Further, Consultant makes no warranty as to the 
compatibility of computer data files with computer software 
and software releases other than that used by Consultant 
in performing services herein, and to the condition or 
availability of the computer data after an acceptance period 
of thirty (30) days from delivery to Client. Any reuse without 
written verification or adaptation by Consultant for the 
specific purpose intended will be at Client's sole risk and 
without liability or legal exposure to Consultant or to 
Consultant's independent professional associates or 
subconsultants, and Client shall indemnify and hold 
harmless Consultant and Consultant's independent 
professional associates and subconsultants from all claims, 
damages, losses, and expenses including attorneys' fees 
arising out of or resulting therefrom. Any such verification 
or adaptation will entitle Consultant to further compensation 
at rates to be agreed upon by Client and Consultant. 

4.6 Consultant's Personnel at Project Site 
4.6.1 The presence or duties of the Consultant 

personnel at a Project site, whether as onsite 
representatives or otherwise, do not make the Consultant 
or its personnel in any way responsible for those duties that 
belong to the Client and/or the construction contractors or 
other entities, and do not relieve the construction 
contractors or any other entity of their obligations, duties, 
and responsibilities, including, but not limited to, all 
construction methods, means, techniques, sequences, and 
procedures necessary for coordinating and completing all 
portions of the construction work in accordance with the 
project documents and any health or safety precautions 
required by such construction work. The Consultant and its 
personnel have no authority to exercise any control over 
any construction contractor or other entity or their 
employees in connection with their work or any health or 
safety precautions and have no duty for inspecting, noting, 
observing, correcting, or reporting on health or safety 
deficiencies of the construction contractor or other entity or 
any other persons at the site except Consultant's own 
personnel. 

4.6.2 To the extent Consultant's Scope of Work 
includes construction observation, the Consultant shall 
keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress 
and quality of the portion of the Work completed, and report 
to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract 
Documents and from the most recent construction schedule 
submitted by the Contractor, and (2) defects and 
deficiencies observed in the Work. Consultant neither 
guarantees the performance of the contractor(s) nor 
assumes responsibility for contractor(s)' failure to perform 
their work in accordance with the project documents. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 36



4.7 Opinions of Cost Financial Considerations, and 
Schedules 
In providing opinions of cost, financial analyses, economic 
feasibility projections, and schedules for the Project, the 
Consultant has no control over the cost of labor, materials, 
equipment, or services furnished by others, or over the 
Contractor(s)' methods of determining prices, or over 
competitive bidding or market conditions. Consultant's 
opinions of probable Total Project Costs and Construction 
Costs provided for herein as appropriate are made on the 
basis of Consultant's experience and qualifications and 
represent Consultant's judgments as an experienced and 
qualified professional consultant familiar with the 
construction industry. Consultant makes no warranty that 
the Client's actual Total Project or Construction Costs, 
financial aspects, economic feasibility, or schedules will not 
vary from the Consultant's opinions, analyses, projections, 
or estimates. If Client wishes greater assurance as to any 
element of the Total Project or Construction cost, feasibility, 
or schedule, Client will employ an independent cost 
estimator, contractor, or other appropriate advisor. 

4.8 Discovery of Unanticipated Pollutant and 
Hazardous Substance Risks 

4.8.1 If Consultant, while performing the services, 
discovers pollutants and/or hazardous substances that 
pose unanticipated risks, it is hereby agreed that the scope 
of services, schedule, and the estimated cost of 
Consultant's services will be reconsidered and that this 
Agreement shall immediately become subject to 
renegotiation or termination. 

4.8.2 In the event that the Agreement is terminated 
because of the discovery of pollutants and/or hazardous 
substances posing unanticipated risks, it is agreed that 
Consultant shall be paid for its total charges for labor 
performed and reimbursable charges incurred to the date of 
termination of this Agreement, including, if necessary, any 
additional labor or reimbursable charges incurred in 
demobilizing. 

4.8.3 Client also agrees that the discovery of 
unanticipated pollutants and/or hazardous substances may 
make it necessary for Consultant to take immediate 
measures to protect health and safety. Consultant agrees 
to notify Client as soon as practically possible should 
unanticipated pollutants and/or hazardous substances be 
suspected or encountered. Client authorizes Consultant to 
take measures that in Consultant's sole judgment are 
justified to preserve and protect the health and safety of 
Consultant's personnel and the public. Client agrees to 
compensate Consultant for the additional cost of taking 
such additional precautionary measures to protect 
employees' and the public's health and safety. This section 
is not intended to impose upon Consultant any duties or 
obligations other than those imposed by law. 

SECTION 5 - Professional Responsibility 

5.1 Performance of Services 
Consultant shall perform its services consistent with the 
professional skill and care ordinarily provided by firms 
practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or 
similar circumstances (hereinafter the "Standard of Care"}. 

Std Client Consulting Agnnnt 
November 2019 

Consultant expressly disclaims all express or implied 
warranties and guarantees with respect to the performance 
of professional services, and it is agreed that the quality of 
such services shall be judged solely as to whether the 
services were performed consistent with the Standard of 
Care. Consultant owes Client only that level of performance 
defined in this Section 5.1, and nothing herein shall be 
construed as creating a fiduciary relationship. 

If at any time prior to construction Client believes 
Consultant's services are deficient due to not meeting the 
Standard of Care, Client must immediately inform 
Consultant in writing and shall afford Consultant the 
opportunity to correct such deficiency. If, upon review by 
Consultant it is determined there is a deficiency that fails to 
meet the standard of care and it is attributable to 
Consultant, the deficiency shall be corrected at no 
additional cost to Client. 

5.2 Limitation of Liability 
Client and Consultant agree to allocate certain of the risks 
so that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant's 
total liability to Client is limited to the amount paid under the 
contract or $50,000 whichever is greater, this being the 
Client's sole and exclusive remedy for any and all injuries, 
damages, claims, losses, expenses, or claim expenses 
(including attorney's fees) arising out of this Agreement 
from any cause or causes. Such causes include, but are 
not limited to, Consultant's negligence, errors, omissions, 
strict liability, breach of contract, or breach of warranty. 

5.3 No Special or Consequential Damages 
Client and Consultant agree that to the fullest extent 
permitted by law neither party shall be liable to the other for 
any special, indirect, or consequential damages 
whatsoever, whether caused by either party's negligence, 
errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract, breach 
of warranty, or other cause or causes. 

5.4 Indemnification 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Client and Consultant 
mutually agree to indemnify and hold each other harmless 
from and against any and all claims, damages, losses and 
expenses, defense costs including reasonable attorneys' 
fees, and court or arbitration costs and other liabilities 
arising from their own negligent acts, errors or omissions in 
performance of their services under this Agreement, but 
only to the extent caused that each party is responsible for 
such damages, liabilities and costs on a comparative basis 
of fault. 

5.5 No Third Party Beneficiaries 
Client and Consultant expressly agree that this Agreement 
does not confer upon any third party any rights as 
beneficiary to this Agreement. Consultant accepts no 
responsibility for damages, if any, suffered by any third 
party as the result of a third party's use of the work product, 
including reliance, decisions, or any other action taken 
based upon it. 

Client agrees that Consultant's services and work products 
are for the exclusive present use of Client. Client agrees 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 37



that Consultant's compliance with any request by Client to 
address or otherwise release any portion of the work 
product to a third party shall not modify, rescind, waive, or 
otherwise alter provisions of this Agreement nor does it 
create or confer any third party beneficiary rights on any 
third party. 

SECTION 6 - Miscellaneous Provisions 

6.1 Notices 
Any notice to either party herein shall be in writing and shall 
be served either personally or by registered or certified mail 
addressed to the signing party shown on the signature 
page. 

6.2 Joint Preparation 
For purposes of contract interpretation and for the purpose 
of resolving any ambiguity in this Agreement, the parties 
agree that this Agreement was prepared jointly by them 
and/or their respective attorneys. 

6.3 Headings 
Headings used in this Agreement are for the convenience 
of reference only and shall not affect the construction of this 
Agreement 

6.4 Severability 
If any of the provisions contained in this Agreement are held 
for any reason to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any 
respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability will not 
affect any other provision, and this Agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable 
provision had never been contained herein. 

6.5 Dispute Resolution 
If negotiation in good faith fails to resolve a dispute within 
thirty (30) days of written notice of the dispute by either 
party, then the parties agree that, with the exception of 
claims that are subject to the applicable venue's small 
claims court jurisdiction, each dispute, claim or controversy 
arising from or related to this Agreement or the relationships 
which result from this Agreement shall be subject to 
mediation as a condition precedent to initiating legal or 
equitable actions by either party. Unless the parties agree 
otherwise, the mediation shall be in accordance with the 
Commercial Mediation Procedures of the American 
Arbitration Association then currently in effect. A request for 
mediation shall be filed in writing with the American 
Arbitration Association and the other party. No legal or 
equitable action may be instituted for a period of ninety (90) 
days from the filing of the request for mediation unless a 
longer period of time is provided by agreement of the 
parties. Cost of mediation shall be shared equally between 
the parties and shall be held in a location mutually agreed 
upon by the parties. The parties shall memorialize any 
agreement resulting from the mediation in a mediated 
settlement agreement, which agreement shall be 
enforceable as a settlement in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

During the pendency of any dispute, the parties shall 
continue diligently to fulfill their respective obligations 

Std Client Consulting Agrmnt 
November 2019 

hereunder. Any dispute not resolved through mediation 
shall be subject to litigation in a court of competent 
jurisdiction in the state in which the project is located. 

6.6 Equal Opportunity 
Consultant will, in the performance of this Agreement, 
comply with federal, state, and local laws, and all 
regulations and orders issued under any applicable law 
related to equal employment opportunity, non
discrimination, or employment generally. 

Consultant certifies that it will not knowingly employ or 
contract with a non-legal resident of the United States to 
perform work under this Agreement, and verifies or 
attempts to verify employee eligibility of its employees 
through participation in the U.S. Department of Homeland 
Security and Social Security Administration's E-Verify 
system. 

6.7 Governing Law 
This Agreement is to be governed by the laws of the 
jurisdiction in which the project is located. For locations 
outside of the United States, this Agreement shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of Illinois. 

6.8 Entire Agreement 
This Agreement, along with those documents specified, 
attached, or hereby cited together, and serially numbered 
Work Authorizations if used, constitute the entire 
Agreement between the parties hereto and no changes, 
modifications, extensions, terminations, or waivers of this 
Agreement, or other documents, or any of the provisions 
herein, or therein contained, shall be valid unless made in 
writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of 
both parties. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 38



Town of Granite Quarry 
£ Tuwno/ _ 143 N. Salisbury Ave. 

GQ GRAN 
__ 
- _ rTE

_ 
Granite Quarry, NC 28146 

QUARRY (704) 279-5596 
Be an orfllnal toWn. 

ISSUED TO: Alfred Benesch & Company 
2359 Perimeter Pointe Parkway 
Suite350 

ITEM 
Charlotte 

UNITS DESCRIPTION 

NC 28208 

Parks & Rec Master Plan 

'-:t') DOh - �D,OTID
= 

0 
"THIS INSTRUMENT HAS BEEN PREAUDITED IN THE MANNER 

REQUIRED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT BUDGET AND FISCAL 

CONTROL ACT." 

\,· 

The Department Head has given electronic approval by signing into the 

secure system with a unique passcode and creating this Purchase Order. 

PURCHASE ORDER 

PO Number: 11432 Date: 02/03/2021 
Vendor#: 

SHIP TO: Town of Granite Quarry 
143 N. Salisbury Ave. 
Granite Quarry, NC 28146 
(704) 279-5596

GLACCT# PRICE 

01-6130-18 $30,000.00 

I Total Purchase Order Amount: J 

BENESCH 

AMOUNT 

$30,000.00 

$30,000.00 

TOWNMA GER/BOARDMEMBER 

/CL n1.. C,r -.U1A 
TOWN MANAGER APPROVES PURCHASES OVER $1,000 / BOARD MEMBER APPROVES PURCHASES OVER $7,500 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 39



 Approval of Contract 

Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
February 8, 2021 
Agenda Item 6  

Summary: 
Attached is the Southern Software letter and Annual Support 
Agreement for CITI-PAK & FMS financial software. This is an 
annual support agreement for existing software. 

Action Requested: 
Motion to approve Southern Software Annual Support Agreement 
for 2021-2022 (September 14, 2021 – September 13, 2022) in the 
amount of $3,011.00 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For        
Against  

Town of Granite Quarry Page 40



Town of Granite Quarry Page 41



Town of Granite Quarry Page 42



Town of Granite Quarry Page 43



Town of Granite Quarry Page 44



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
February 8, 2021 Planning Board 
Agenda Item 8  Appointment Recommendation 

Summary 
The Planning Board reviewed an application for their vacant 
Town resident seat and made the recommendation that the Board 
of Aldermen appoint Mike Brinkley to the vacant seat with an 
expiration of 7/31/2023. 

The new Committee Membership Recruiting and Appointment 
Policy required the Planning Board to review the application and 
make a recommendation to the Board of Aldermen. 

Attachments 
A. Clerk’s Summary
B. Application

Action Requested: 
Consideration of the Planning Board’s recommendation and 
possible action to appoint Mike Brinkley to the vacant Town 
resident Planning Board seat with an expiration of 7/31/2023. 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For        
Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 45



  SUMMARY 

TO: Board of Aldermen 

FROM: Town Clerk Aubrey Smith 

RE: Summary of Application Review 

DATE: 2/8/2021 

The current Committee Membership Recruiting and Appointment Policy, adopted by the Board of 
Aldermen 9/8/2020, directs the Clerk to conduct an administrative review of an application, comparing 
with: 

• Any ordinance requirements for qualifications;
• The current compositions of the applicable committee’s membership for diversity of

backgrounds and residence locations with a goal of fair representation of the town’s
jurisdiction.

Ordinance 
Granite Quarry Code of Ordinances Ch. 2 Article VIII. Sec. 2-137. Membership. 
The Planning Board of the town shall be composed of eleven (11) members: (9) regular members and 
two (2) alternates. Five (5) regular members and one (1) alternate shall be residents of the town and 
shall be appointed by the Board of Aldermen of the town. Four (4) regular members and one (1) 
alternate shall be residents of the extraterritorial jurisdictional area (outside the corporate limits of the 
town) and shall be appointed by the County Board of Commissioners. The terms of all members 
appointed by each governing body shall be for three (3) years, except that in the case of a vacancy 
occurring during a term, the remainder of the term shall be filled by the governing body having the 
authority to make such an appointment for the unexpired portion of the term. 

There are no qualifications other than residency stated in the ordinance for Planning Board members. 

The current Planning Board membership consists of the following: 
• 4 filled Town seats  1 vacant Town seat 1 Town Alternate 
• 3 filled ETJ seats  1 vacant ETJ seat 1 ETJ Alternate 

Diversity of Backgrounds 
The current Planning Board members have a wide variety of background experience and/or 
occupations including: 

• Materials auditor, production supervisor
• Fire Department Chief of Operations, Fire Chief, US Army National Guard
• Transportation / Distribution consultant, warehouse planning and site locating for major

trucking companies
• Sales / customer service, customer service management
• Minister, Patrolman, Sergeant, Captain
• Vice-President of marketing company
• Dental hygienist, teacher assistant
• Project manager NCDOT, transportation staff engineer, surveyor intern, HVAC assistant
• Registered nurse

 Mr. Brinkley is experienced in construction, served on Town boards for 18 years, and helped
rewrite the Code of Ordinances for the Town.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 46



Diversity of Residence Locations 
Mr. Brinkley is a resident of the Town and lives on S. Jack Street. 

The residences of the five Planning Board members currently representing the Town are located on 
the following streets: 

• Byrd Road (2)
• N. Main Street
• Foil Street
• N. Cleo

Town of Granite Quarry Page 47



Town of Granite Quarry Page 48



Town of Granite Quarry Page 49



Community Appearance Commission
Appointment Recommendation 

Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
February 8, 2021 
Agenda Item 9  

Summary: 
The Community Appearance Commission reviewed an application 
for their vacant ETJ seat and made the recommendation that the 
Board of Aldermen appoint Semone Brisson to the vacant ETJ 
seat with an expiration of 7/31/2021. 

The new Committee Membership Recruiting and Appointment 
Policy required the Community Appearance Commission to 
review the application and make a recommendation to the Board 
of Aldermen. 

Attachments: 

A. Clerk’s Summary
B. Application

Action Requested: 
Consideration of the Community Appearance Commission’s 
recommendation and possible action to appoint Semone 
Brisson to the vacant Community Appearance Commission 
ETJ seat, expiring 7/31/2021. 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For        
Against  

Town of Granite Quarry Page 50



  SUMMARY 

TO: Board of Aldermen 

FROM: Town Clerk Aubrey Smith 

RE: Summary of Application Review 

DATE: 2/8/2021 

The current Committee Membership Recruiting and Appointment Policy, adopted by the Board of 
Aldermen 9/8/2020, directs the Clerk or designee to conduct an administrative review of an 
application, comparing with: 

• Any ordinance requirements for qualifications;
• The current compositions of the applicable committee’s membership for diversity of

backgrounds and residence locations with a goal of fair representation of the town’s
jurisdiction.

Ordinance 
Granite Quarry Code of Ordinances Chapter 2 Article X. Community Appearance Commission 
Sec. 2-187 Membership Qualification and Terms of Office 

(2) Where possible, appointments shall be made in such a manner as to maintain on the Commission
at all times a majority of members who have had special training or experience in a design field, such
as architecture, landscape design, horticulture, city planning, or a closely related field.

The current Community Appearance Commission membership consists of the following: 
• 5 filled Town seats  1 vacant Town seat 
• 0 filled ETJ seats  1 vacant ETJ seat 

Background 
Mrs. Brisson is experienced in accounting and garden design. She has designed several gardens and 
landscapes including one at the Rufty Holmes Senior Center. 

Diversity of Residence Locations 
Mrs. Brisson is a resident of the ETJ and lives on Fish Pond Road. 

The residences of the five Community Appearance Commission members currently representing the 
Town are located on the following streets: 

• Gentry Place
• Stonewyck Drive
• Meadow Wood Court
• Hillcrest Ridge Drive
• S. Main GQ Street

Town of Granite Quarry Page 51



Town of Granite Quarry Page 52



Town of Granite Quarry Page 53



SUMMARY 

TO: Board of Aldermen 
FROM: Town Manager Larry Smith 

RE: NCDOT Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning Grant 

DATE: 2/8/2021 

One of the Board’s goals was to apply for the NCDOT Bike & Ped planning grant.  As we updated Board 
members recently: the Town has been awarded the grant! 

A copy of the Agreement is attached.  Some highlights / additional notes: 

• Funding.  We had originally budgeted $3,500 anticipating a $35,000 award.  Award was granted
for up to $50,000, so the Town’s 10% maximum match will now be $5,000.  We are able to absorb 
that additional amount within the Admin budget (i.e., no budget amendment needed).

Page 3, #s 10-11 explain overrun amounts.  We intend to advise the selected consultant to plan
ahead for ensuring we stay under or within budget.

#12 explains that any unused amount would be reimbursed to the Town.

• Consultant.  We tried to persuade NCDOT to use the same consultant we have already lined up
with our Parks & Rec Plan, for the benefits of efficiency from some of the elements that could
overlap.  NCDOT was not able to accommodate that, but advised that they will have their
selected firm coordinate with our Bike & Ped firm on any processes that might be combined (e.g.,
public input sessions, parks/recreation surveys).

Please let me know if you have any questions that I might need to get answers from DOT about before 
the meeting. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Motion to authorize the Town Manager to proceed with the NCDOT Bicycle and Planning Grant 
award. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 54



Town of Granite Quarry Page 55



Town of Granite Quarry Page 56



Town of Granite Quarry Page 57



Town of Granite Quarry Page 58



Town of Granite Quarry Page 59



SUMMARY 

TO: Board of Aldermen 
FROM: Town Manager Larry Smith 

RE: Clyde Adams plaque 

DATE: 2/8/2021 

At the November Town Board meeting Alderman Costantino asked about installing a plaque for former 
Police Chief Clyde Adams.  Mayor Feather asked for staff get a price estimate. 

Chief Cook reports: 
I sent Drew (Harwood Signs) several examples of a building dedication plaque along with sample 
writing. There may also be shadow graphics and photos on the plaque, it really just depends on the 
scale of detail that is requested. Size was quoted in the 20”x14” range mounted on a resin-based 
backer. I also told him it must be high-quality print suitable for framing. He has given a rough quote of 
$300 for such item. This would change depending on the scale of the plaque. These are some of the 
examples I sent to Drew.   

Estimate is attached. As of 2/3/21, the Board still has $380.00 remaining in its Office Expense line item. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Direction from the Board on how it wishes to proceed. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 60



Harwood Signs Inc

PO Box 118
Granite Quarry, NC  28072
(704)2797333
harwoodsigns@hotmail.com

Estimate
ADDRESS

Town Of Granite Quarry

ESTIMATE # 1149
DATE 01/26/2021

ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

Signabond Sign
20"x14” full color printed plaque/building sign.  
Designed to customer specification.  Per copy

1 300.00 300.00T

SUBTOTAL 300.00
TAX 21.00
TOTAL $321.00

Accepted By Accepted Date

Town of Granite Quarry Page 61



Additional Street Light Proposal 

Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
February 8, 2020 
Agenda Item 12  

Summary: 
Proposal from Chief Hord for additional streetlights. 

Attachments: 
• Chief Hord’s Additional Street Light Proposal Summary
• Location maps

Action Requested: 
Motion to approve street lighting requests as presented. 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 

Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For          
Against 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 62



Additional Street Light Proposal Summary 

In looking at the town, it has been noted that several locations do not have adequate street lighting. This 
is because of previous annexation, new construction, and oversight. In working with a Duke Energy 
engineer and listening to citizen concerns, I have identified several key locations where additional lighting 
is needed to address safety concerns and comply with our ordinance. All the additions are attached with 
a map and the cost increase to the town’s street lighting budget. After consulting with finance, we have 
found that we are currently running under budget and this is much contributed to the replacement of 
mercury vapor and metal halide lights with LED. This is an ongoing process that public works submits 
streetlights as they go out and they are replaced with LED from Duke Energy at no cost. The lights that we 
are discussing in this proposal are for lights in addition to what is currently in the area.  

• Credit Union Area
Addition of 3 lights on existing poles on Mayor Ponds Street - $23.55 per month
Addition of 4 new poles and lights on “Roadway B” - $57.32 per month
Total project monthly addition - $80.87 per month

• Whitney Court
Addition of 1 new pole and light to cul-de-sac - $19.30 per month
1 time cost of $600.00 for under road bore for underground cable feed.
Total project $19.30 per month   - $600.00 one-time fee

• Legion Club Road
Addition of 3 lights from on existing poles - $42.99 per month
Replace 2 high pressure sodium lights $50.00 each or $100.00 for one-time fee.
Total project cost $42.99 per month and $100.00 one-time fee.

• Quarry property – Mar Rock Dr.
Install one new light on existing pole - $8.02 per month

Total additions
Monthly street light billing increase - $151.18 per month
$700.00 one-time fee for ground boring and 2 replacement heads on Legion Club

Town of Granite Quarry Page 63



BROWN ALREADY EXISITING
RED NEW INSTALLATIONS
ALL COST ARE ESTIMATED AND COULD CHANGE 
SLIGHTLY WHEN SERVICE AGREEMENT IS SIGNED 

50W LED RW
EXISTING POLE = $7.85 EACH MONTH 
NEW POLE OVER HEAD CABLE = $14.33 EACHMONTH

Town of Granite Quarry Page 64



70W LED RW
EXISITNG POLE = $8.02 MONTHLY

Town of Granite Quarry Page 65



EXISITNG 50W LED ROADWAY

100W HPS (HIGH PRESSURE SODIUM)
TRANSITION FEE = $50 EACH (2 LIGHTS)
MUST BE PAID BEFORE WORK BEGINS

175W MV (MERCURY VAPOR)
NO TRANSITION FEE

ALL LIGHTS INSTALLED AND TRANSITIONED 
ARE 50W LED ROADWAY ON EXISITNG POLES

50W LED RW ON EXISITNG POLE W/ 
OVERHEAD CABLE = $14.33 MONTHLY

Town of Granite Quarry Page 66



BORING UNDER ROAD AND POSSIBLY WATER LINES
ESTIMATED COST $600 
NEEDS TO BE PAID BEFORE WORK BEGINS 

50W LED ROADWAY W/ UNDERGROUND CABLE
$19.30 MONTH

NEEDED TO DO BEFORE WORK BEGINS

Talk to property owners about digging 
and boring on their property.

Get locates to scout area

Would need to get all brush cleaned up 
from existing pole to new pole for crew 
to dig.

180’ UNDERGROUND CABLE

Town of Granite Quarry Page 67



  SUMMARY 

TO: Board of Aldermen 
FROM: Town Manager Larry Smith 

RE: Voluntary Satellite Annexations – Town/Marple properties 

DATE: 2/8/2021 

The Town purchased Tax Parcels 352 082, 083, 084, and 061 abutting Balfour Quarry Rd (less and 
except the tower area on parcel 061) from Mr. David Marple in pursuit of property to relocate its yard 
waste operations.  The next steps were to: 

1) Rezone the properties;
2) Secure release of a State Mining permit on the parcels;
3) Obtain permits, make site improvements, and relocate Town Yard Waste operations;
4) Survey the parcel south of Balfour Quarry Rd to “subdivide” tower parcel (which led to):

4a) Alleviate boundary and encroachment issues discovered during that survey;
4b) Create a logical subdivision resolution of the tower area to retain Marple-ownership.

5) Annex the properties.

Town-owned property follows different annexation processes & steps than a voluntary petition by 
private property owner.  So this annexation is actually broken into two different petitions: 

1. Satellite Annexation of Municipal Property
Area 1:  The town-owned parcel north of Balfour Quarry Road
Area 2:  The town-owned parcel south of Balfour Quarry Road

2. Petition for Satellite Annexation
The tower area parcel within Area 2 above remaining under the ownership of David Marple

Next Steps 
The formal steps of the process are attached in case you’re interested. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 68



A-2021-__ ;  A-2021-__ Notes

Marple and Town-owned properties* *Marple 352 087;  Town 352 082, 352 083, 352 084, 352 061

Summary

1. Legal description of property (commission survey if needed) TM, Atty 1/27/21

2. Resolution of intent to annex TC 1/27/21 2/8/21 Submit at 2/8 mtg (to coincide with Marple petition), but specify hearing is 4/12/21 mtg (to coincide with Marple petition)

Petition Requesting a Non-Contiguous Annexation TM, Marple 1/27/21 2/8/21 "1/27" is target date to have agenda items to Clerk for the 2/8/21 meeting

Resolution Directing Clerk to Investigate Petition TC 1/27/21 2/8/21

Certificate of Sufficiency TC 2/24/21* 3/8/21 *Begin of course right after 3/8/21 BOA mtg if so directed.  Due by 2/24 for the 3/8/21 BOA mtg.

Resolution Fixing Date of Public Hearing on Annexation TC 2/24/21 3/8/21

Notice of Public Hearing TC 3/28/21 4/12/21 Must run at least 10 days prior to 4/12/21 hearing.  2 separate legal ads.

Request for Rural FD debt information TM 2/24/21* 3/8/21 *Begin of course right after 3/8/21 BOA mtg if so directed.  Due by 2/24 for the 3/8/21 BOA mtg.

3. Public Hearing BOA 4/12/21

4. Adoption of Annexation Ordinance TC 3/28/21 4/12/21 2 separate Ordinances

Effective Date 6/30/21 1

Notice of Adoption of Annexation Ordinance TC 4/16/21 "Optional" - not required by law, but recommended

5. Resolution Accepting Mar Rock Dr into GQ System of Streets TC, Finance 4/12/21 4/12/21 *Filing # = Resolution #.  Follows annexation adoption on the agenda; Finance to follow up with PB map update.

6. Filing:    Local Govt Commission - Contract with Rural FD TM 4/16/21 Filing N/A if less than $100.

7. Filing:    Annexation Recording       Town Clerk's Office TC 4/16/21 Have planner update zoning maps also

Preclearance Requirements Voting Rights Act N/A N/A to GQ

Register of Deeds TM 4/16/21 *Filing # = Deed Book & Page #s

Secretary of State TC 4/16/21 *Example by SOS comp #s.  We'll file each by their ultimate Ordinance Adoption #s (e.g., A-2021-09 and A-2021-10)

Board of Elections TM 4/16/21 If uninhabited, include cover letter explaining (area is owned by the municipality) and has no residents

Office of State Planning: Population Info TC 4/16/21 Info on population, or lack thereof

Tax Collector TM 4/16/21

Powell Bill Report Finance 7/1/21* Maps due by 6/30; filing in July

Annual Boundary and Annexation Survey Planner 7/1/21* *Usually mailed to municipality late June with a July deadline for submission
1  See 8-2, 8-3 for additional pro-rating requirements if effective date is adopted as something other than 6/30.

Who
Target

Date

Corresponding 

BOA mtg Date

Town of Granite Quarry Page 69



RESOLUTION 2021-01

RESOLUTION STATING THE INTENT OF THE TOWN OF 
GRANITE QUARRY TO ANNEX PROPERTY OWNED BY THE 

TOWN WHICH IS NOT CONTIGUOUS TO THE EXISTING 
MUNICIPAL BOUNDARIES 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Aldermen of the Town of Granite Quarry that: 

Section 1.  It is the intent of the Board of Aldermen, pursuant to G.S. 160A-58.7, to annex 
the property described in Section 2, which is owned by the Town of Granite Quarry. 

Section 2.  The legal description of the property is as follows: 

Area 1:  Commonly known as Lot Numbers 1, 2, and 3 and Mar Rock Drive as illustrated on 
attached copy of Book of Maps 9995, Page 6043 and specifically described as follows: 

Beginning at a chiseled hole in a boulder which is of N 60°14'53" W  (Book of Maps 
6043) a distance of 67.90 feet from an existing nail by a ½” existing iron pipe; thence with 
a bearing of S 15°45'44" W (Book of Maps 6043 for the remainder calls of this parcel) a 
distance of 155.52 feet to a ½” existing iron pipe; thence S 39°39'39" W 172.13 feet to a 
½” existing iron pipe; thence S 39°39'39" W 31.50 feet to a computed point in Legion Club 
Road which is the point of beginning of Rowan PID: 352 061; thence N 69°27'23" W 98.03 
feet to a computed point; thence N 75°08'44" W 75.99 feet to a point; thence N 84°49'13" 
W 105.54 feet to a computed point; thence S 85°36'17" W 71.41 feet to a computed point; 
thence S 79°01'18" W 41.43 feet to a computed point; thence S 73°58'36" W 54.34 feet to 
a computed point; thence leaving Legion Club Road N 07°15'52" W 30.63 feet to a ½” 
existing iron pipe; thence N 07°15'52" W 168.53 feet to a ½” existing iron pipe; thence S 
71°07'57" W 195.55 feet to a ½” existing iron pipe; thence N 07°13'15" E 70.67 feet to a 
½” existing iron pipe; thence N 07°13'15" E 100.50 feet to a ½” existing iron pipe; thence 
N 07°13'15" E 100.50 feet to a 1” existing iron pipe; thence N 51°08'15" E 106.47 feet to a 
½” existing iron pipe; thence S 86°45'29" E 46.27 feet to a new iron pipe; thence S 
86°45'29" E 344.26 feet to an existing nail by 1” existing iron pipe; thence S 60°14'53" E 
357.00 feet to the point of beginning, containing 6.53 Acres +/-.  Metes and bounds 
prepared from Rowan County Register of Deeds Book of Maps 9995, page 6043. 

Area 2:  Commonly known as Tax Map 352, Parcel 061 (NC Grid North) as illustrated on the 
attached survey and specifically described as follows: 

Beginning at a point (not set for found) being the southeastern corner of D. B. 1340, 
page 200 in the center of Balfour Quarry Road having coordinates of N:677602.88, 
E:1571377.90 which is S 37°32'14" W a distance of 31.54 feet from a ½” pipe found; thence 
with a bearing of S 70°03'22" E a distance of 3.42 feet to a Spike Set in the center of 
Legion Club Road; thence with a bearing of S 04°39'20" W a distance of 45.00 feet to a 
5/8" rod Set; thence with a bearing of S 04°41'07" W a distance of 177.95 feet to a 5/8" 
rod Set which is with a bearing of N 88°05'02" W a distance of 345.00 feet from a Town of 
Granite Quarry Annexation Marker with coordinates of N:677367.98, E:1571707.73; 
thence with a bearing of N 88°05'00" W a distance of 501.89 feet to a 5/8" rod Set; thence 
with a bearing of N 88°05'05" W a distance of 365.76 feet to a 3/4" pipe found.; thence 
with a bearing of N 05°09'27" E a distance of 44.58 feet to a Spike Set in the center of 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 70



Balfour Quarry Road; thence with a bearing of N 69°09'57" E a distance of 223.00 feet to 
a point (not set nor found); thence with a bearing of N 69°01'28" E a distance of 251.04 
feet to a nail set in the center of said road; thence with a bearing of N 71°52'27" E a 
distance of 54.30 feet to a point (not set nor found) in the center of said road; thence with 
a bearing of N 76°56'17" E a distance of 41.42 feet to a point (not set nor found) in the 
center of said road; thence with a bearing of N 83°31'16" E a distance of 71.39 feet to a 
point (not set nor found) in the center of said road; thence with a bearing of S 86°53'15" E 
a distance of 105.51 feet to a nail set in the center of said road; thence with a bearing of S 
20°05'52" W a distance of 37.55 feet to a 5/8" rod Set; thence with a bearing of S 18°50'10" 
W a distance of 20.00 feet to a 1/2" rod found.; thence with a bearing of S 18°37'33" W a 
distance of 100.27 feet to a 1/2" rod found.; thence with a bearing of S 71°17'55" E a 
distance of 99.72 feet to a 1/2" rod found.; thence with a bearing of N 24°52'00" E a 
distance of 94.88 feet to a 5/8" rod Set; thence with a bearing of N 09°39'11" E a distance 
of 62.91 feet to a nail set in Balfour Quarry Road; thence with a bearing of N 18°59'17" E 
a distance of 9.33 feet to a nail set in the center of Balfour Quarry Road; thence with a 
bearing of S 71°32'09" E a distance of 74.33 feet to the point of beginning.; containing 
152711 square feet or 3.506 acres. 

Section 3.  The property described in Section 2 is not contiguous to the current municipal 
boundaries, but will meet the requirements of G.S. 160A-58.1(b). 

Section 4.  A public hearing on the question of annexation will be held at Granite Quarry 
Town Hall at 7:00 p.m. on April 12th, 2021. 

Section 5.  Notice of the public hearing shall be published once in the Salisbury Post, a 
newspaper having general circulation in the Town of Granite Quarry, at least ten (10) days prior 
to the date of the public hearing. 

Adopted this 8th day of February, 2021 

______________________________ 
William D. Feather, Mayor 

Attest: 

__________________________________ 
Aubrey Smith, Town Clerk 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 71



Town of Granite Quarry Page 72



Town of Granite Quarry Page 73



Town of Granite Quarry Page 74



  SUMMARY 

TO: Board of Aldermen 
FROM: Town Manager Larry Smith 

RE: Voluntary Satellite Annexations – Town/Marple properties 

DATE: 2/8/2021 

The Town purchased Tax Parcels 352 082, 083, 084, and 061 abutting Balfour Quarry Rd (less and 
except the tower area on parcel 061) from Mr. David Marple in pursuit of property to relocate its yard 
waste operations.  The next steps were to: 

1) Rezone the properties;
2) Secure release of a State Mining permit on the parcels;
3) Obtain permits, make site improvements, and relocate Town Yard Waste operations;
4) Survey the parcel south of Balfour Quarry Rd to “subdivide” tower parcel (which led to):

4a) Alleviate boundary and encroachment issues discovered during that survey;
4b) Create a logical subdivision resolution of the tower area to retain Marple-ownership.

5) Annex the properties.

Town-owned property follows different annexation processes & steps than a voluntary petition by 
private property owner.  So this annexation is actually broken into two different petitions: 

1. Satellite Annexation of Municipal Property
Area 1:  The town-owned parcel north of Balfour Quarry Road
Area 2:  The town-owned parcel south of Balfour Quarry Road

2. Petition for Satellite Annexation
The tower area parcel within Area 2 above remaining under the ownership of David Marple

Next Steps 
The formal steps of the process are attached in case you’re interested. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 75



A-2021-__ ;  A-2021-__ Notes

Marple and Town-owned properties* *Marple 352 087;  Town 352 082, 352 083, 352 084, 352 061

Summary

1. Legal description of property (commission survey if needed) TM, Atty 1/27/21

2. Resolution of intent to annex TC 1/27/21 2/8/21 Submit at 2/8 mtg (to coincide with Marple petition), but specify hearing is 4/12/21 mtg (to coincide with Marple petition)

Petition Requesting a Non-Contiguous Annexation TM, Marple 1/27/21 2/8/21 "1/27" is target date to have agenda items to Clerk for the 2/8/21 meeting

Resolution Directing Clerk to Investigate Petition TC 1/27/21 2/8/21

Certificate of Sufficiency TC 2/24/21* 3/8/21 *Begin of course right after 3/8/21 BOA mtg if so directed.  Due by 2/24 for the 3/8/21 BOA mtg.

Resolution Fixing Date of Public Hearing on Annexation TC 2/24/21 3/8/21

Notice of Public Hearing TC 3/28/21 4/12/21 Must run at least 10 days prior to 4/12/21 hearing.  2 separate legal ads.

Request for Rural FD debt information TM 2/24/21* 3/8/21 *Begin of course right after 3/8/21 BOA mtg if so directed.  Due by 2/24 for the 3/8/21 BOA mtg.

3. Public Hearing BOA 4/12/21

4. Adoption of Annexation Ordinance TC 3/28/21 4/12/21 2 separate Ordinances

Effective Date 6/30/21 1

Notice of Adoption of Annexation Ordinance TC 4/16/21 "Optional" - not required by law, but recommended

5. Resolution Accepting Mar Rock Dr into GQ System of Streets TC, Finance 4/12/21 4/12/21 *Filing # = Resolution #.  Follows annexation adoption on the agenda; Finance to follow up with PB map update.

6. Filing:    Local Govt Commission - Contract with Rural FD TM 4/16/21 Filing N/A if less than $100.

7. Filing:    Annexation Recording       Town Clerk's Office TC 4/16/21 Have planner update zoning maps also

Preclearance Requirements Voting Rights Act N/A N/A to GQ

Register of Deeds TM 4/16/21 *Filing # = Deed Book & Page #s

Secretary of State TC 4/16/21 *Example by SOS comp #s.  We'll file each by their ultimate Ordinance Adoption #s (e.g., A-2021-09 and A-2021-10)

Board of Elections TM 4/16/21 If uninhabited, include cover letter explaining (area is owned by the municipality) and has no residents

Office of State Planning: Population Info TC 4/16/21 Info on population, or lack thereof

Tax Collector TM 4/16/21

Powell Bill Report Finance 7/1/21* Maps due by 6/30; filing in July

Annual Boundary and Annexation Survey Planner 7/1/21* *Usually mailed to municipality late June with a July deadline for submission
1  See 8-2, 8-3 for additional pro-rating requirements if effective date is adopted as something other than 6/30.

Who
Target

Date

Corresponding 

BOA mtg Date

Town of Granite Quarry Page 76



TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 
PETITION REQUESTING A NON-CONTIGUOUS 

ANNEXATION 

Date: ___________________ 

To the Board of Aldermen of the Town of Granite Quarry: 

1. We the undersigned owners of real property respectfully request that the area described
in Paragraph 2 below be annexed into the Town of Granite Quarry. 

2. The area to be annexed is non-contiguous to the Town of Granite Quarry and the
boundaries of such territory are as follows, with the corresponding survey map attached: 

Beginning at a nail set having coordinates of N:677626.43, E:1571307.39; thence with a 
bearing of S 18°59'17" W a distance of 9.33 feet to a nail set; thence with a bearing of S 
09°39'11" W a distance of 62.91 feet to a 5/8" rod Set; thence with a bearing of S 24°52'00" 
W a distance of 94.88 feet to a 1/2" rod found; thence with a bearing of N 71°17'55" W a 
distance of 99.72 feet to a 1/2" rod found.; thence with a bearing of N 18°37'33" E a distance 
of 100.27 feet to1/2” rod found; thence with a bearing of N 18°50'10" E a distance of 20.00 
feet to a 5/8" rod Set; thence with a bearing of N 20°05'52" E a distance of 37.55 feet to a 
nail set; thence with a bearing of S 77°15'49" E a distance of 75.98 feet to a nail set; thence 
with a bearing of S 71°30'47" E a distance of 23.67 feet to the point of beginning.; containing 
17025 square feet or 0.391 acres. 

3. A map is attached showing the area proposed for annexation in relation to the primary
corporate limits of the Town of Granite Quarry. 

4. We acknowledge that any zoning vested rights acquired pursuant to G.S. 160D-108
must be declared and identified on this petition.  We further acknowledge that failure to declare 
such rights on this petition shall result in a termination of vested rights previously acquired for 
the property.  If zoning vested rights are claimed, indicate below and attach proof. 

Name Address Do you declare 
vested rights? 

(yes or no) 

Signature 

1. James David Marple 1681 Little Bay Road 
White Stone, VA 22578 No 

2. 

3. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 77



RESOLUTION 2021-02 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY, NORTH 
CAROLINA, DIRECTING THE CLERK TO INVESTIGATE 

A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S. 160A-58.1 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said petition was 
received on February 8, 2021 by the Board of Aldermen of the Town of Granite Quarry, North 
Carolina (“Board of Aldermen”); and 

WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-58.2 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be investigated 
by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take place; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen of the Town of Granite Quarry deems it advisable to 
proceed in response to this request for annexation: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Aldermen of the Town of 
Granite Quarry that: 

The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above-described 
petition and to certify as soon as possible to the Board of Aldermen the result of the investigation. 

______________________________ 
        William D. Feather, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
     Aubrey Smith, Town Clerk 

[SEAL] 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 78



Town of Granite Quarry Page 79



Town of Granite Quarry Page 80



SUMMARY 

TO: Board of Aldermen 
FROM: Town Manager Larry Smith 

RE: Offer To Purchase Town Parcel 352 061 

DATE: 2/8/2021 

Attached is an Offer To Purchase (OTP) the Town has received regarding the parcel south of Balfour 
Quarry Rd that the Town recently purchased and is in the process of annexing. 

I explained to the offeror that the Town is just now finalizing the legal process correcting property lines 
on this parcel, and thus is also still in the process of annexing it as well… so the Board has 
understandably not even begun to discuss additional plans for the property past that (premature until 
we have these issues resolved and completed). 

However, IF the Board wishes to entertain the offer and establish/instruct staff concerning the 
negotiation of price and terms of a contract, RECOMMENDED ACTION would be to go into closed 
session to do so. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Motion to decline the Offer to Purchase parcel 352 061. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 81



January 22, 2021 Via e-mail to: planner@granitequarrync.gov 

Offers to Purchase regarding Parcel 352 061 (and possibly 352 084) 

To whom it may concern: my name is Harry Marsh and I'm a real estate attorney in Charlotte, 
looking to maybe get out of that town. I’m buying 510 Balfour Quarry:  PID 353 118. Or rather, I am 
under contract to purchase that parcel, which is a 24.57 acre active mine/granite quarry.  I have 
been under contract for over a month and have requested (and been granted) short delays by Seller, 
who is cooperative in trying to help me do this.  I am writing and submitting the attached offer to 
purchase regarding the City of Granite Quarry property PID 352-061.  This is a 3.3 acre property 
that abuts the property that I am trying to buy.  (picture is also attached) 

The Granite Quarry (PID 353 118) has an active mining permit with many requirements in order to 
remove that permit: environmental in nature (and other). Pages 4 and 5 show the detailed list of 
requirements that need to be remedied to remove the active mining permit. Environmental cleanup of 
some contaminated areas, a fence built around the entire quarry, removal of much other debris and 
various other requirements will be necessary in this process.  It will be a reasonably large undertaking.  

The State mining board is also making me purchase parcel # 353 200 as part of this process (for which I 
am also under contract).  There is a small tower on this property that abuts the quarry and the State 
mining board has asked that this be added to the parcel I had asked to buy, so that a fence could 
completely encapsulate the property.  I am under contract and have negotiated with that owner, as well. 

Part of the State mining board’s directive is to assure that safety of the property in the future, after 
episodes such as the death that occurred at the Quarry in August, 2021  (see below if curious). 
https://www.salisburypost.com/2020/08/30/teen-drowns-in-balfour-quarry-three-charged-with-trespassing/ 

Long story short:  the sale is now contingent upon this final parcel (your parcel).   I plan to put a law firm at 
this quarry (short term plan) and later retire at the quarry (residential house).    

I would like to offer $4,000 for the parcel that you own:  352-061.   A cell phone tower, easement for a 2nd 
driveway to the granite quarry and a duke power easement run through this property, reducing its value 
substantially (I would argue).   The parcel would benefit me by consolidating ownership and allowing me to 
put a fence around the property (secure it from vandals and for safety of public).  Additionally, the extra area 
might make it easier to install a septic system or well, to service future building. 

I would promise that these properties would be well maintained and improved in the future.  Public safety 
will be improved by addition of the fence, and the local environment will also be improved:  we plan a more 
secure dam to hold the water and many other improvements. 

If I could buy the quarry on the other side of the road, I would also be interested in that parcel, but plan 
not to muddy the water and would make an offer on that parcel at a later date.  I imagine we’ll be talking 
to the town of Granite Quarry about rezoning, in the future.   I hope to build a relationship that benefits us 
both. 

Thank you for your time, Harry Marsh 
harry@harrymarshlaw.com www.harrymarshlaw.com     tel. 704.956.7498   fax. 866.535.8589 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 82

mailto:planner@granitequarrync.gov
http://www.harrymarshlaw.com/


Property I am trying to buy 
from Granite Quarry 

would also buy this if 
possible 

Property already 
under contract 

 Other property already under contract 

Easement for power lines ------>

Easement for driveway ---->

Town of Granite Quarry Page 83



OFFER TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

The Buyer & Seller (identified below) enter into a legal agreement, exchanging valuable consideration for real estate known as: 

415 Balfour Quarry Road    Granite Quarry                    NC 28072 
PID 352 061 

The Property above shall be deemed to include the entirety of the land and fixtures located at that address, unless otherwise identified. 

The purchase price offered is $ $8,000 

Balance at closing  $ $8,000   

This offer is premised upon the following terms: 

1. Said property is to be sold free and clear of all encumbrances, by good and marketable title, with full possession to said property
available to Buyer at date of closing.  Seller knows of no liens or encumbrances, and has no notification of such (city or HOA
liens, etc).  Taxes, HOA dues or other items will be pro-rated at closing.

2. Buyer will pay all closing costs of any sort, including excise tax.

3. Buyer to close within 1 week of acceptance and may use his own law firm to close.

. 

______________________________________________ 
Buyer Printed Name or LLC: Harry Marsh  

______________________________________________  ______________________________________________________ 

Seller Printed Name or LLC: City of Granite Quarry by ___________________, _______________________  
name   title 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 84



Town of Granite Quarry Page 85



Town of Granite Quarry Page 86



Town of Granite Quarry Page 87



Town of Granite Quarry Page 88



Town of Granite Quarry Page 89



Town of Granite Quarry Page 90



Town of Granite Quarry Page 91



Town of Granite Quarry Page 92



February 2021 
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

Planning Board 6pm 
 21 8 9 10 11 12 13 

Business After Hours 5pm 
BoA Regular Mtg. 7pm 

Centralina Board of 
Delegates Zoom Mtng 
5pm CAC 6pm 

BoA Planning 
Retreat 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

P.E.R.C. 5pm 
ZBA 5:30pm Revitalization 3:30pm 

Power in 
Partnership 
Breakfast 7:30am 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

MPO TAC 5:30pm 

28 March 1 

Planning Board 6pm 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 93


	February 8, 2021 Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Approval of Agenda
	2. Approval of Consent Agenda
	2A. January 11, 2021 Draft Board Meeting Minutes
	2B. Departmental Reports
	2C. Financial Reports

	4. Space Needs Assessment
	5. Town Manager's Update
	6. Agreement Southern Software
	8. PB Appointment Recommendation
	9. CAC Appointment Recommendation
	10. NCDOT Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning Grant
	11. Adams Plaque
	12. Street Lighting
	13. Annexation - Municipal
	14. Annexation - Marple
	15. Offer to Purchase
	17. February 2021 Calendar

	Back: 


